
 

 
Telephone Enquiries: Michael Cunliffe, Democratic Services (01254) 380109 
Email: memberservices@hyndburnbc.gov.uk 
Published on Wednesday, 26 June 2019 

Page 1 of 3  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Council 
 
Thursday, 4 July 2019 at 7.00 pm, 
Council Chamber, Accrington Town Hall 
 
Membership 
 
Councillor June Harrison (Mayor) in the Chair,  
Councillors Judith Addison, Josh Allen, Mohammad Ayub, Noordad Aziz, Jean Battle, 
Sara Britcliffe, Stephen Button, Andrew Clegg, Loraine Cox, Paul Cox, Munsif Dad BME, 
Tony Dobson, Stewart Eaves, Diane Fielding, Melissa Fisher, Glen Harrison, Marlene Haworth, 
Stephanie Haworth, Eamonn Higgins, Terry Hurn, Abdul Khan, Chris Knight, Patrick McGinley, 
Michael Miller, Jenny Molineux, Tim O'Kane, Dave Parkins, Bernadette Parkinson, Miles Parkinson 
OBE, Joyce Plummer, Kath Pratt, Jeff Scales, Paddy Short and Kate Walsh 
 

 

A G E N D A 
 
 

1.   Apologies for absence   
 
 

2.   Declarations of Interest and Dispensations   
 
 

3.   Announcements   
 
 

4.   Confirmation of Minutes  (Pages 5 - 14) 
 
To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the Council meetings held on 16th and 25th 
May 2019 (attached). 
 

Public Document Pack



 

Page 2 of 3 

 

5.   Question Time  (Pages 15 - 16) 
 
To deal with any questions submitted under Council Procedure Rule 2.2(vi). 
 

6.   Changes of Appointments to Committees  (Pages 17 - 18) 
 

Report attached. 
 

7.   APPG Definition on Islamophobia  (Pages 19 - 20) 
 
Report attached. 
 

8.   Minutes of Cabinet  (Pages 21 - 42) 
 
To receive the minutes of the Cabinet meetings held on 20th March and 5th June 2019. 
 
Rules of Debate 
 

 The Leader of the Council will move the Minutes, the Deputy Leader of the 
Council will second the Minutes. 

 Non-executive Members will be invited to make comment or ask questions on the 
Minutes (5 Minutes). 

 Cabinet Members will be invited to make comments and respond to any points 
raised (5 Minutes). 

 The Leader of the Council will be given up to 15 Minutes to respond and to 
answer any questions raised. 

 

9.   Minutes of Committees  (Pages 43 - 68) 
 
To receive the Minutes of Committees, as set out below: 
 
Rules of Debate 
 

 The Leader of the Council will introduce the Minutes as a whole. 

 Any Member may raise any issue from the Minutes; the Chair of the relevant 
Committee may respond (5 Minutes). 

 The Leader of the Council will close the debate (5 Minutes). 
 

Meeting (Municipal Year 2018/19)  Date 

Audit Committee 11th March 2019 

Resources Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee (Call-In) 

14th March 2019 

Judicial Committee (Private Hire and 

Hackney Carriage Licensing) 

20th March 2019 

Communities and Wellbeing Overview 

and Scrutiny Committee 

21st March 2019  

Planning (Trees) Sub Committee 4th April 2019 

Management Review Committee 10th April 2019 



 

Page 3 of 3 

 

Planning Committee 24th April 2019 
 

10.   Motion(s) submitted on Notice  (Pages 69 - 72) 
 
To consider any Motions for debate in accordance with Council Procedure Rule A9.  
 

 
 

 
Chief Executive 
Hyndburn Borough Council 
 
Scaitcliffe House 
Ormerod Street 
Accrington 
Lancashire 
BB5 0PF 
 
Wednesday, 26 June 2019 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
1 

 
COUNCIL 

 

 
Thursday, 16th May, 2019 

 
Present:  Councillors Judith Addison, Josh Allen, Mohammad Ayub, Noordad Aziz, 

Sara Britcliffe, Stephen Button, Andrew Clegg, Loraine Cox, Paul Cox, 
Munsif Dad, Tony Dobson, Stewart Eaves, Diane Fielding, Melissa Fisher, 
Glen Harrison, June Harrison, Marlene Haworth, Stephanie Haworth, 
Eamonn Higgins, Terry Hurn, Abdul Khan, Chris Knight, Michael Miller, 
Jenny Molineux, Tim O'Kane, Dave Parkins, Bernadette Parkinson, 
Miles Parkinson, Joyce Plummer, Kath Pratt, Jeff Scales, Paddy Short and 
Kate Walsh 
 

Apologies: Councillors Jean Battle and Patrick McGinley 

  

 
The meeting was opened by the retiring Mayor, Councillor Mohammad Ayub 
 
1 Election of Mayor 2019/20 

 
It was proposed by Councillor Miles Parkinson and seconded by Councillor Tony Dobson, 
that Councillor June Harrison be elected Mayor of the Borough of Hyndburn for the 
Municipal Year 2019/20. 
 
A Point of Order was raised by Councillor Judith Addison, regarding to the operation of Rule 
A23.3 of the Council Procedure Rules, in relation to the appointment of the Mayoress and 
Consort.  The matter was to be addressed later in the meeting. 
 
Resolved - That, in pursuance of Section 23 of the Local 

Government Act 1972, Councillor June Harrison be 
elected to the Office of Mayor of the Borough of 
Hyndburn for the Municipal Year 2019/20.  

 
The newly-elected Mayor, Councillor June Harrison left the meeting.  
 
Following a short adjournment, Councillor Harrison took her place in the Mayor’s Seat and 
Councillor Ayub attached the Mayoral Fob to the Chain now worn by the newly-elected 
Mayor.  Councillor Harrison then read and signed the Declaration of Acceptance of Office of 
Mayor and said a few words of thanks. 
 

2 Election of Deputy Mayor 2019/20 
 
The Mayor invited nominations for the election of Deputy Mayor of the Borough of 
Hyndburn for the Municipal Year 2019/20.  It was proposed by Councillor Tony Dobson and 
seconded by Councillor Miles Parkinson that Councillor Kath Pratt be elected to the Office 
of Deputy Mayor. 
 
Resolved - That, in pursuance of Section 23 of the Local 

Government Act 1972, Councillor Kath Pratt be elected 
to the Office of Deputy Mayor of the Borough of 
Hyndburn for the Municipal Year 2019/20.  

 

Public Document Pack

Page 5

Agenda Item 4.



 
 
 

 

 
 

Councillor Pratt read and signed the Declaration of Acceptance of Office of Deputy Mayor. 
 

3 Apologies for absence 
 
Apologies for absence were submitted from Councillors Jean Battle and Patrick McGinley. 
 

4 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 
There were no dispensations. 
 
 

5 Announcements 
 
Mayor 
 
The Mayor announced the sad passing of Freeman of the Borough, Irene Barnes of 
Durham Drive, Oswaldtwistle, on Saturday 27th April 2019, aged 88 years.  
 
During her life, Irene had worked at Mullards for 35 years and for many years was a loyal 
and dedicated committee member of the Arthritis Society as well as a member of 
Rhyddings Methodist Church.  She and her late husband were involved with many local 
voluntary organisations and were also singers and entertainers.  In recognition of all her 
charity work she was awarded with the Freedom of the Borough by the Council in 2010. 
 
Councillors Judith Addison and Miles Parkinson also spoke about Irene’s achievements. 
 
One minute’s silence was held as a mark of respect for Irene’s passing and in celebration of 
her life. 
 
Leader of the Council 
 
The Leader of the Council, Miles Parkinson, announced that this had been a very fruitful 
year for the Borough, with the following achievements of note:- 
 
Significant investment had been made by the Andy Holt, Chairman of Accrington Stanley 
FC in the football club.  The team had consolidated its league position with for a second 
consecutive season in League One.  Some £300k was due to be spent on the pitch and 
other facilities over the summer period.  The club was an important asset to the town and 
the Borough and had not only been saved, but was flourishing.  The club’s name was 
known across the world.  The Council wished all the best to the club, its players and its 
supporters. 
 
The Council had recently concluded a lease of Highams Playing Fields to the Accrington 
Stanley Community Trust.  The project would attract around £1M of investment, which 
would provide a facility for all.  The Trust would engage with all sectors of society, including 
the people with a disability and other groups.  The Trust’s Chief Executive Officer, Martin 
Fearon, was applauded for his efforts to make this challenging project a reality.  It was 
anticipated that further recognition of this project would flow from its achievements in the 
future. 
 
It was also right to recognise the hard work and achievements of those councillors who had 
not been returned at the recent elections, namely former Councillors Lisa Allen and Gareth 
Molineux.  Both had carried out the difficult job of public office with the conviction of their 

Page 6



 
 
 

 

 
 

own different political views, but with a common aim to make the Borough a better place.  
On behalf of the Council, he thanked those individuals for their service. 
 
Councillor Tony Dobson concurred with the comments made by the Leader about 
Hyndburn’s successes and added his congratulations to the three newly elected councillors, 
with the hope that they enjoy their new role and help to make a positive contribution to the 
work of the Council. 
 

6 Confirmation of Minutes 
 
The Minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 21st March 2019 were submitted for 
approval as a correct record. 
 
Resolved - That the Minutes of the Council meeting held on the 

21st March 2019 be approved as a correct record.  
 

7 Appointment of the Leader of the Council - 2019/20 to 2022/23 
 
Council was asked to appoint a Leader of the Council for a four-year term, from this 
meeting until the Council’s Annual Meeting in May 2023.  In December 2010, the Council 
had adopted the Leader and Cabinet model of governance, in accordance with the Local 
Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007.  Under this arrangement, Council 
would elect a Leader for a four-year term.  Councillor Miles Parkinson was duly elected 
Leader in May 2011.  The Localism Act 2011 had subsequently taken out the requirement 
for the Leader to be elected for a four-year term, leaving the duration of tenure to local 
choice.  It was nevertheless recommended that the Leader be elected for a four-year term.  
 
Resolved - That Councillor Miles Parkinson be elected Leader of 

the Council for a further four years, his term of office 
ending at the Council’s Annual Meeting in May 2023. 

 
8 Declaration of the Returning Officer for the Local Elections on 2 May 2019 

 
The declaration of the Returning Officer of those elected at the local elections held on 2nd 
May 2019 was submitted as follows:- 
 
 

Electoral Ward Name and Address of 
Elected Councillor 

 

Party 

Altham Councillor Miles Parkinson 
13 Calf Hey, Lynwood Park 
Clayton Le Moors, BB5 5XW 

Labour 

Barnfield Councillor June Harrison 
Owl House, Plantation Road 
Accrington, BB5 6RU 

Labour 

Baxenden Councillor K Pratt 
Mayroyd, 120 Hollins Lane 
Accrington, BB5 2JS 

Conservative 

Central Councillor Mohammad Ayub 
68 Willows Lane 
Accrington, BB5 0RT 

Labour 

Church Councillor Loraine Cox 
27 Pansy Street South 

Labour 

Page 7



 
 
 

 

 
 

Accrington, BB5 4BS 

Clayton-le-Moors Councillor Melissa Fisher 
33 Collingwood 
Clayton-le-Moors, BB5 5QP 

Labour 

Huncoat 
 

Councillor Eamonn Higgins 
232 Avenue Parade 
Accrington, BB5 6QW 

Labour 

Immanuel 
 

Councillor Judith Addison 
77 Catlow Hall Street 
Oswaldtwistle, BB5 3EZ 

Conservative 

Milnshaw 
 

Councillor Paul Cox 
27 Pansy Street South 
Accrington, BB5 4BS 

Labour 
 

Overton 
 

Councillor Patrick McGinley 
24 Whalley Road 
Great Harwood, BB6 7TF 

Conservative 

Rishton Councillor Kate Walsh 
21 Cattle Street 
Great Harwood, BB6 7NG 

Labour 

St Oswald’s Councillor Chris Knight 
Mill Hill Cottage, 60 Mill Hill 
Oswaldtwistle, BB5 3LX. 

Labour 

 
9 Scheme of Delegation 2019/20 

 
A report seeking approval for the Scheme of Delegation of Non-Executive Functions to 
Officers for 2019/20 was submitted.  It was a requirement of the Council’s Constitution that 
the Scheme be approved annually at the Council’s Annual General Meeting. 
 
It was also good practice to review the Scheme of Delegation regularly to keep it up to date 
and help to ensure the Council’s decision-making processes operated as effectively as 
possible and in accordance with legal requirements.  The amendments to the Scheme 
related to legislative changes, officer duties and responsibilities along with changes of job 
titles and specific delegations to the Head of Regeneration and Housing in connection with 
grants to voluntary sector bodies regarding homelessness duties and changes to rent levels 
for garage plots. 
 
Resolved - That the 2019/20 Scheme of Delegation to Officers, as 

proposed in the Schedule to the report, be agreed.  
 

10 Review of the Constitution 
 
A report on the annual review of the Council’s written Constitution was submitted, which 
sought approval for a number of changes.  The report acknowledged that a review of the 
Financial Procedure Rules and Budget and Policy Framework had taken place, but that 
neither document required amendment.  However, changes were proposed in relation to 
the deadline for the receipt of public questions for Council meetings; the process for dealing 
with petitions; and clarification of the restrictions as to voting by substitute members arriving 
late at a meeting. 
 
In accordance with Council Procedure rule A12(a) the Leader of the Council, Councillor 
Miles Parkinson, altered the written motion in the report by the addition of the following sub-
section 
 

Page 8



 
 
 

 

 
 

“(3) That it be agreed that the wording at Rule A23.3 of the Council Procedure Rules is 
amended to omit the words “a member of the Council’s executive or” 

 
The consent of the meeting was given to the alteration. 
 
It was clarified that the above alteration would not affect the restriction on the leader or 
deputy leader of a political group represented on the Council from acting as mayoress or 
consort. 
 
A number of councillors spoke against the proposed changes to Rule A23.3.  The Leader of 
the Council reminded Members that the Constitution was reviewed every year and was 
intended to be a fluid document, which could adapt to changes in circumstances. 
 
In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 16.5, six members present requested that a 
recorded vote be taken.  The votes were recorded as follows:- 
 
For the Motion: 
 
Councillors Mohammad Ayub, Stephen Button, Andrew Clegg, Loraine Cox, Paul Cox, 
Munsif Dad, Stewart Eaves, Diane Fielding, June Harrison, Stephanie Haworth, Eamonn 
Higgins, Chris Knight, Jenny Molineux, Dave Parkins, Bernadette Parkinson, Miles 
Parkinson, Joyce Plummer and Paddy Short (18). 
 
Against the Motion: 
 
Judith Addison, Josh Allen, Sara Britcliffe, Tony Dobson, Marlene Haworth, Terry Hurn, 
Michael Miller, Kath Pratt and Jeff Scales (9) 
 
Abstentions: 
 
Noordad Aziz, Melissa Fisher, Glen Harrison, Abdul Khan, Tim O’Kane and Kate Walsh (6) 
 
The motion was therefore carried. 
 
Resolved (1) That it be noted that a review of the Financial 

Procedure Rules and the Budget & Policy Framework 
Procedure Rules has taken place but it has been 
concluded that neither of these currently require 
amendment;  

 
(2) That it be agreed that Rule A2.2(vi) of the Council 

Procedure Rules is amended, as set out in paragraph 
3.2 of the report; 

 
(3) That it be agreed that the wording at Rule A23.3 of the 

Council Procedure Rules is amended to omit the words 
“a member of the Council’s executive or”; 

 
(4) That it be agreed that Rule A25 of the Council 

Procedure rules is amended, as set out in Appendix 2 
to the report; and 

 
(5) That it be agreed that Rule 26.8 of the Council 

Procedure Rules is amended by the insertion of 
Section (g) as set out in Appendix 2 to the report. 

Page 9



 
 
 

 

 
 

 
11 Annual Review of Planning and Licensing Codes of Practice 

 
A report seeking approval of the Planning and Licensing Codes of Practice following an 
annual review of the same was submitted.  Local Authorities were recommended, as a 
matter of good practice, to supplement their Member Code of Conduct with specific Codes 
of Practice to assist Members involved in the planning and licensing processes. 
 
Resolved (1) That the Planning and Licensing Codes of Practice 

appended to the report, be approved; and,  
 
 (2) That it be noted that training would be arranged for all 

Members of the Planning and Licensing Committees in 
respect of their respective Code of Practice as soon as 
possible in the new Municipal Year.  

 
12 Timetable of Meetings 2019/20 

 
The proposed Timetable of Meetings for 2019/20 was submitted for approval. 
 
Resolved - That the Timetable of Meetings for 2019/20 be 

approved. 
 

13 Record of Attendance at Council Meetings 2018/19 
 
A report relating to the annual attendance of Members at Council meetings held in 2018/19 
was submitted for information.  The report detailing the attendance of Councillors at eligible 
meetings of the Council was submitted each year to the Annual General Meeting of the 
Council. 
 
Resolved - That the attendance report be noted.  
 
The following item was submitted as urgent business with the Chair’s agreement in 
accordance with Section 100B(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the reason being to 
ensure that Committees, Sub-Committees, Panels and Working Groups could be 
constituted without delay. 
 

14 Appointment of Committee, Sub-Committees, Panels and Working Groups 2019/20 
 
The Leader of the Council submitted proposals for the appointment of Committees, Sub-
Committees, Panels and Working Groups for the Municipal Year 2019/20, including the 
Terms of Reference for those bodies.  Proposals for membership of those bodies were 
tabled at the meeting. 
 
Resolved (1) That the Terms of Reference of Council, Cabinet and 

other constituted bodies as outlined in Appendices 1 
and 2 of the report be approved and the Council’s 
Constitution (Part 3 – Responsibility or Functions) be 
amended accordingly;  

 
 (2) That the political composition of those Committees and 

Sub-Committees of the Council, as set out in 
Paragraph 4.3 of the report, be approved;  

  

Page 10



 
 
 

 

 
 

 (3) That the membership of those Committees and Sub-
Committees and the proposed Chairs and Vice-Chairs, 
as set out in the Appendix tabled at the meeting, be 
approved;  

 
 (4) That the membership of Panels and Working Groups, 

together with the proposed Chairs, as set out in the 
Appendix tabled at the meeting, be approved;  

 
 (5) That the membership of Cabinet and the allocation of 

Portfolio responsibilities for 2019/20, as set out in the 
Appendix tabled at the meeting, be noted; and,  

 
 (6) That a Councillor unable to attend a meeting of which 

he/she is a member, be authorised to appoint a 
Councillor not serving on that particular Committee, 
Sub-Committee, Panel or Working Group to act as a 
substitute in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 
A26.8. 

 
The following item was submitted as urgent business with the Chair’s agreement in 
accordance with Section 100B(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the reason being to 
ensure that Co-optees could be appointed to Overview and Scrutiny Committees without 
delay.  
 
 

15 Appointment of Co-optees 
 
A report on recommendations for the appointment of co-optees to the Council’s Overview 
and Scrutiny Committees was presented. 
 
Councillor Tony Dobson raised a concern that this item had not been published sooner and 
queried the level of expertise of Mr Gareth Molineux as a proposed Co-optee of the 
Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  Councillor Marlene Haworth expressed a 
view that all Co-optees should be able to demonstrate an appropriate level of expert 
knowledge. 
 
The Leader of the Council responded that Mr Molineux had been the relevant portfolio 
holder for Resources during his recent term of office as a councillor and was, therefore, 
suitably qualified for the role of Co-optee. 
 
Resolved (1) That approval be given to the following re-

appointments of Co-optees to the Resources Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee: 

 
- Honorary Alderman Paul Barton 
- Honorary Alderman Ian Ormerod 
- Honorary Freeman Bernard Dawson 

 
(2) That approval be given to the following Re-

appointment of Co-optees to the Communities and 
Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee: 

 
- Honorary Freeman Bernard Dawson 

 

Page 11



 
 
 

 

 
 

(3) That it be noted that the previous appointment of 
Honorary Alderman Doug Hayes as Co-optee to the 
Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee covers the 2019/20 Municipal Year. 

 
(4) That it be agreed to amend Rule C2 of the Overview 

and Scrutiny Procedure Rules as set out in the 
Appendix to this report 

 
(5) That approval be given to the appointment of Gareth 

Molineux as new Co-optee to the Resources Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee. 

 
The following item was submitted as urgent business with the Chair’s agreement in 
accordance with Section 100B(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the reason being to 
ensure that the appointments to outside bodies and other organisations were made without 
delay. 
 

16 Appointments to Outside Bodies and Organisations 
 
A report relating to the appointment of Council representatives to Outside Bodies and 
Organisations for the Municipal Year 2019/20 was submitted for approval.  The proposed 
appointments were tabled at the meeting as Appendix A to the report.     
 
In accordance with the Council’s Procedure Rule A1.2(x), the Council was required to 
receive nominations and appoint to outside bodies and organisations, except where 
appointment to those bodies had been delegated by the Council or was exercisable only by 
the Executive.  
 
Resolved - That the appointments to Outside Bodies and Organisations 

for the Municipal Year 2019/20, as set out in Appendix A to 
the report, be approved. 

 
 
 
 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
at which the minutes were confirmed 

 
 

Page 12



 
 

 
COUNCIL 

 

 
Saturday, 25th May, 2019 

 
Present:  Councillor June Harrison (Mayor), Councillors Judith Addison, 

Mohammad Ayub, Noordad Aziz, Sara Britcliffe, Andrew Clegg, 
Loraine Cox, Paul Cox, Munsif Dad, Tony Dobson, Stewart Eaves, 
Diane Fielding, Melissa Fisher, Glen Harrison, Stephanie Haworth, 
Terry Hurn, Abdul Khan, Chris Knight, Michael Miller, Jenny Molineux, 
Tim O'Kane, Dave Parkins, Bernadette Parkinson, Miles Parkinson, 
Joyce Plummer, Kath Pratt, Jeff Scales, Paddy Short and Kate Walsh 
 

Apologies: Councillors Josh Allen, Jean Battle, Stephen Button, Marlene Haworth, 
Eamonn Higgins and Patrick McGinley 

  

 
17 Welcome 

 
The Chief Executive, Mr David Welsby welcomed Honorary Freemen, Honorary Aldermen, 
Councillors and Guests to the 2019/20 Mayor-making Ceremony, to install the Mayor of the  
Borough. 
 

18 Declaration of Mayor, 2019/20 
 
The Chief Executive announced that at the Annual General Meeting of the Council held on 
16th May 2019, Councillor June Harrison had been elected Mayor of the Borough for the 
Municipal Year 2019/20. 
 
The Mayor read the Declaration of Acceptance of Office of Mayor and was presented with 
the Mayoral Fob by Councillor Mohammad Ayub and a framed Illuminated Resolution by 
the Chief Executive.  Councillor Miles Parkinson made a speech of welcome which was 
supported by Councillors Tony Dobson, Paddy Short and Judith Addison. 
 
The Mayor then made a speech of acceptance. 
 

19 Declaration of Deputy Mayor, 2019/20 
 
The Mayor announced that at the Annual General Meeting of the Council held on 16th May 
2019, Councillor Kath Pratt had been elected Deputy Mayor of the Borough for the 
Municipal Year 2019/20.  
 
The Deputy Mayor read the Declaration of Acceptance of Office of Deputy Mayor.  
 

 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
at which the minutes were confirmed 

 

Public Document Pack

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



 

REPORT TO: Council 

DATE: 04 July 2019 

REPORT AUTHOR: Julian Joinson, Member Services Manager 

TITLE OF REPORT: Question Time  

EXEMPT REPORT:  No  

KEY DECISION: No If yes, date of publication: n/a 

 

Question to Council 
 

The following question has been submitted under Council Procedure 2.2(vi):- 
 
To the Leader of the Council (Councillor Miles Parkinson OBE) 
 

1. After my recent disappointment in planning regarding my application for Glamping 
cabins in Great-Harwood. Refused. 
 
I would like a survey of Hyndburn Borough Council in the chamber by recorded show of 
hands, if they thought my brilliant idea of Glamping (the first one in Hyndburn) is a good 
one.  Irrespective of greenbelt as this is being reviewed as we speak.  One of the 
reasons I went forward with this was the review highlighted the possibility of removing 
my land from the greenbelt. 
 
And I do believe that the planners are negotiating building 400 houses on the adjacent 
field to mine including my land.  As we speak I am waiting for an offer to sell.  
 

(submitted by Mr Ian Robinson) 
 
Procedural Note  
 

 The question will be read out by the Mayor 

 The Leader will give an oral answer. 

 The questioner may ask a supplementary question, if it is directly related to the original 
question 

 
Date: 26 June 2019 

Page 15

Agenda Item 5.



This page is intentionally left blank



 

REPORT TO: Council 

DATE: 04 July 2019 

REPORT AUTHOR: Julian Joinson, Head of Member Services 

TITLE OF REPORT: Changes of Appointments to Committees 

EXEMPT REPORT:  No  

KEY DECISION: No If yes, date of publication: n/a 

 
 
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To enable a change to be made to the appointments to Committees for 2019/20 to 

accommodate the wishes of the Conservative Group. 
 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 To approve the appointment of Councillor Patrick McGinley in place of Councillor Josh 

Allen within the Conservative Group appointments to the Communities and Wellbeing 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

 
3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 
3.1 At the Annual Council Meeting on 16 May 2019, approval was given to the appointment 

of the Committees, Sub-Committees, Panels and Working Groups for 2019/20, 
including the list of appointees to each of those Committees and the various other 
bodies established.  The appointments on behalf of the Conservative Group to the 
Communities and Wellbeing Committee were Councillors Judith Addison and Josh 
Allen. 

 
3.2 Subsequently the Leader of the Conservative Group has indicated the wishes of the 

group to seek the appointment of Councillor Patrick McGinley in place of Councillor 
Josh Allen on that Committee.  The Council is request to agree to the request. 

 

Page 17

Agenda Item 6.



This page is intentionally left blank



REPORT TO: Council 

DATE: 04 July 2019 

PORTFOLIO: Cllr Miles Parkinson, Leader 

REPORT AUTHOR: Kirsten Burnett, Head of Policy and Organisational 
Development 

TITLE OF REPORT: APPG Definition on Islamophobia 

EXEMPT REPORT  
(Local Government 
Act 1972, Schedule 
12A)  

No Not applicable 

KEY DECISION: No If yes, date of publication:  

 
  
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To propose that the Council adopts the APPG Definition on Islamophobia. 
 
 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 That the Council agrees to adopt the All-Party Parliamentary Group (APPG) on British 

Muslims Definition on Islamophobia and ensures that this is reflected in its Equality and 
Diversity Scheme and other relevant policies. 

 
 
3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 
3.1 The APPG published its definition of “Islamophobia” last December, backed by a cross-

party group of MPs and based on extensive consultation.  It reads: 
 

“Islamophobia is rooted in racism and is a type of racism that targets 
expressions of Muslimness or perceived Muslimness.”  

 
3.2 The Labour party, the Scottish Conservatives, the Liberal Democrats, London Mayor 

Sadiq Khan, British Muslims for Secular Democracy, and several local councils have 
already adopted the proposed definition. 

 
3.3 The APPG report can be read in full via the link shown in section 7, below.  This 

includes a 3 page Executive Summary (pages 9-11). 
 
 

Page 19

Agenda Item 7.

https://static1.squarespace.com/static/599c3d2febbd1a90cffdd8a9/t/5bfd1ea3352f531a6170ceee/1543315109493/Islamophobia+Defined.pdf
https://static1.squarespace.com/static/599c3d2febbd1a90cffdd8a9/t/5bfd1ea3352f531a6170ceee/1543315109493/Islamophobia+Defined.pdf


3.4 On 10 January 2019, the Council agreed to adopt the International Holocaust Memorial 
Alliance (IHRA) definition of antisemitism and its examples. 

 
3.3 The Council’s Equality and Diversity Scheme is due for review in 2019 and it is 

proposed that the definition of antisemitism and a link to the examples is included in 
the revised document, along with the islamophobia definition. 

 
 
4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 N/a 
 
 
5. Consultations 
 
5.1 For discussion at Full Council meeting. 
 
 
6. Implications 
 

Financial implications (including 
any future financial commitments 
for the Council) 
 

None 

Legal and human rights 
implications 
 

The Council is bound by the Equality Act 
and the Public Sector Equality Duty and it is 
intended that adopting this definition will 
support this. 

Assessment of risk 
 

N/a 

Equality and diversity implications 
A Customer First Analysis should be 
completed in relation to policy 
decisions and should be attached as 
an appendix to the report.  
 

See above. 

 
 
7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 

List of Background Papers  
 

APPG report: 
https://static1.squarespace.com/static/599c3d2febbd1a90cffdd8a9/t/5bfd1ea3352f531a
6170ceee/1543315109493/Islamophobia+Defined.pdf 

 

Page 20

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407
https://static1.squarespace.com/static/599c3d2febbd1a90cffdd8a9/t/5bfd1ea3352f531a6170ceee/1543315109493/Islamophobia+Defined.pdf
https://static1.squarespace.com/static/599c3d2febbd1a90cffdd8a9/t/5bfd1ea3352f531a6170ceee/1543315109493/Islamophobia+Defined.pdf


 
1 

 
CABINET 

 

 
Wednesday, 20th March, 2019 

 
Present:  Councillor Miles Parkinson (in the Chair), Councillors Paul Cox and 

Munsif Dad 
 

In Attendance: Councillors Tony Dobson and June Harrison 

  

Apologies: Gareth Molineux and Joyce Plummer 
 

 
350 Apologies for Absence 

 
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Gareth Molineux and Joyce 
Plummer. 
 

351 Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 
 
There were no reported declarations of interest or dispensations. 
 

352 Minutes of Cabinet 
 
The Minutes of the meeting of Cabinet held on 6th February 2019 were submitted for 
approval as a correct record. 
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct  

record. 
 

353 Minutes of Boards, Panels and Working Groups 
 
The minutes of the following meetings were submitted:- 

 Regeneration and Housing Panel- 14th January 2019 

 Cabinet Street Naming Committee- 15th February 2019 
 
The Leader of the Conservative Group referred to item 36 of the Regeneration and Housing 
Panel, Disabled Facility Grant Eligibility. He reported that no information had been received 
to date in relation to the establishment of a Cross Party Working Group to look at resolving 
any issues associated with the Disabled Facility Grant Process which was agreed at the 
Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee on the 12th February. 
 
The Chair asked the Head of Regeneration and Housing to communicate arrangements 
with the Democratic Services department. 
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and noted. 
 

354 Reports of Cabinet Members 
 
There were no reports provided by Cabinet Members present at the meeting. 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 21

Agenda Item 8.



 
 
 

 

 
 

355 Sale of Clayton Triangle site - Update from Overview & Scrutiny Committee Call-in 
 
The Leader of the Council reported on behalf of the Portfolio holder for Resources who had 
submitted a report to inform Members of the findings of the Resources Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee “Call-in” in respect of the sale of the Clayton Triangle site. 
 
Approval of the report was not deemed a key decision. 
 
Reasons for Decision 
 
At its meeting on 6th February 2019 Cabinet approved the disposal of the land known as 
Clayton Triangle. That decision was subsequently “called in” by the Resources Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee, which met to consider the matter on 4th March 2019. 
 
After careful consideration the Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee released 
the Cabinet decision for full implementation. 
 
In addition, Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee asked that Cabinet noted the 
following: 
 
i) that the Committee wishes to ensure that ward councillors are consulted in respect 
proposals for the sale of land and property in their area and that there is wider 
member participation in the disposal of Council owned sites; and 
 
ii) that the Committee is keen to ensure that the Council markets its sites for sale as 
widely and proactively as possible to ensure that development opportunities are 
brought to the attention of a wide range of potential purchasers. This will include 
ensuring the Council has an up to date mailing list of all developers, including cooperatives 
and registered social landlords. 
 
There were no alternative options for consideration or reasons for rejection. 
  
Resolved (1) That Cabinet noted the Cabinet decision of 6th February 2019  

in respect of the disposal of the Clayton Triangle site which was 
released in full for implementation; and, 
 

  (2) That Cabinet noted the comments of the Resources Overview  
& Scrutiny Committee in respect of future disposals of land and 
property as set out in the report. 

 
356 Renewal of Procurement Strategy 

 
The Leader of the Council reported on behalf of the Portfolio holder for Resources who had 
submitted a report to seek approval to extend the Council’s current procurement strategy 
for 2 years to enable the procurement implications of Brexit to be better understood prior to 
a new procurement strategy being prepared. 
 
Approval of the report was not deemed a key decision. 
 
Reasons for Decision 

  
The Council’s existing Procurement Strategy covered the period 2014 – 2018 and was 
attached as an appendix to the report. The Strategy was approved by Cabinet in June 2014 
and it established the following as the Council’s procurement objectives: 
 

Page 22



 
 
 

 

 
 

Effective procurement: 

 Delivering value for money by reducing costs whilst maintaining quality 

 Reducing unnecessary bureaucracy and streamlining our processes 

 Maintaining high standards of probity, transparency and legal compliance 
 
Sustainable procurement: 

 Supporting the local economy 

 Protecting the environment 

 Promoting a fairer society 
 
The Strategy was now due for review and updating. However, there is some uncertainty 
about the direction of public procurement following Brexit and it seems sensible to delay 
this work until the implications of Brexit are better understood. For this reason it is 
suggested that the Procurement Strategy is extended to cover the period 2014 –2020. 
 
Alternative Options Considered and Reasons for Rejection   
 
There is no legal requirement to have a Procurement Strategy, so Cabinet could dispense 
with the Strategy completely. However, it is recognised good practice to have a 
procurement strategy as part of the Council’s approach to securing best value, so this is not 
recommended. Alternatively, Cabinet could request officers to review and update the 
Procurement Strategy now, rather than agreeing to the proposed delay. 
 
This is not recommended as it could lead to abortive work, as any strategy put in place now 
could need to be further reviewed and updated in the near future, post-Brexit. 

Resolved  That Cabinet agreed to the Council’s Procurement 
Strategy 2014-18 be extended for two years to enable 
the procurement implications of Brexit to be better 
understood prior to a new procurement strategy being 
prepared. 

 
357 Domestic Abuse Services 

 
The Deputy Leader of the Council reported on behalf of the Portfolio holder for Housing and 
Regeneration who had submitted a report to seek authority to enter into a Grant Agreement 
with HARV (Hyndburn and Ribble Valley Domestic Abuse Service) to enable HARV to 
deliver domestic abuse support services to enhance the domestic abuse safe house 
provision and deliver a sanctuary scheme in Hyndburn. 
 
The Leader of the Conservative Group asked if the service covered all sections of the 
community including men. 
 
Approval of the report was not deemed a key decision. 
 
Reasons for Decision 
 
Lancashire CC in partnership with the 12 Lancashire district housing authorities and 11 
domestic abuse service providers has been successful in securing a grant award of 
£1,249,947.00 across the county via a bid to MHCLG (Ministry of Housing, 
Communities and Local Government). This nationwide ‘2018 – 2020 Fund for 
Domestic Abuse Services’ is for local areas to work collaboratively across local 
authority boundaries to strengthen domestic abuse provision. An additional £120,000 
has been awarded that will help towards the delivery of sanctuary schemes. The 
funding is a one off grant payment for 18 months (October 2018 to end of March 2020). 

Page 23



 
 
 

 

 
 

 
Through this bid Hyndburn has secured an allocation of £96,619 to assist in the 
enhancement of the domestic abuse safe house provision in the Borough. Funding will be 
used by HARV to employ support workers which include a dedicated BME (Black Minority 
Ethnic) and Complex Needs Worker and a part time Family Support Worker to support 
families living in the safe houses and ensuring that victims from all sections of the 
community are able to access the provision. 
 
HARV also manages and co-ordinates the Boroughs sanctuary scheme provision for 
victims of domestic abuse in Hyndburn. This support enables victims of domestic 
abuse to stay safe in their own homes through the provision of physical security 
measures including window and door locks, strengthening doors, emergency alarms 
etc. The grant funding will ensure this scheme continues. 
 
The Council will enter into a grant agreement with HARV which will provide funding to 
HARV to enable it to deliver support to the residents in Hyndburn’s safe houses and to 
deliver a sanctuary scheme to keep victims of domestic abuse safe and secure in their own 
homes. 
 
Alternative Options Considered and Reasons for Rejection   
 
There are no realistic alternative options. Both Hyndburn Borough Council and HARV 
supported the successful bid to MHCLG. HARV has provided the support to the residents in 
Hyndburn’s safe house for the last 5 years and has delivered the sanctuary scheme in the 
Borough since 2006. This new funding will enable HARV to continue to deliver support to 
vulnerable victims of domestic abuse in the borough. As the funding is for 18 months only it 
does not seem reasonable or proportionate to look at grant funding other agencies that 
would have set up costs etc. The grant funding received will deliver the outcomes stated in 
the bid. 

Resolved (1) That Cabinet agreed to the Council accepting grant 
funding of £96,619 - for safe house support and 
an amount to be determined (approx. £5k to £10k)  
to support a sanctuary scheme - from Lancashire  
County Council to enhance domestic abuse  
support services in the Borough; and, 

 (2) That Cabinet delegated authority to the Head of 
Regeneration and Housing following consultation 
with the Portfolio Holder for Regeneration and Housing 
Services to agree the terms of, and enter into a grant 
agreement with Hyndburn and Ribble Valley Domestic 
Abuse Service (HARV) to enable them to enhance their 
domestic abuse safe house provision and deliver a 
sanctuary scheme in Hyndburn. 

 
358 Financial Position January 2019- Report for the Year Ending 31st March 2019 

 
The following item was submitted as urgent business with the Chair’s agreement in 
accordance with Section 100B(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the reason being to 
ensure the latest up to date financial information was included in the report. 
 
The Leader of the Council reported on behalf of the Portfolio holder for Resources who had 
submitted a report to inform Cabinet on the financial spending of the Council up to the end 
of January 2019 and the financial forecast outturn position for the Accounting Year 2018/19. 

Page 24



 
 
 

 

 
 

 
Approval of the report was not deemed a key decision. 
 
Reasons for Decision 
 
The financial details of the report was shown as a table at the end of the report. 
 
The spend for the first 10 months of the financial year to the end of January 2019 was 
£9,011,632 compared to a Budget of £9,095,172 giving a positive variance of £83,000 over 
the first 10 months of the year. 
 
The current forecast spend to the end of the financial year in March 2019 was £11,039,000 
compared to a Budget of £11,174,000.  This forecast produces a positive variance of 
£135,000.  Culture & Leisure Services, Parks & Cemeteries, Planning & Transportation and 
Regeneration & Property Services were all predicting small adverse variance.  
 
Only Town Centre & Markets are forecasting a significant adverse variance. 
All other Budget Areas are indicating a surplus position compared to their Budget by the 
year end. 
 
Alternative Options Considered and Reasons for Rejection   
 
Not applicable.   
 
Resolved - That Cabinet noted the report and asked that the  

Corporate Management Team continue to reduce costs and 
increase income over the remainder of the year to help improve 
the overall financial position of the Council.  

 
359 Integrated Home Improvement Service 

 
The following item was submitted as urgent business with the Chair’s agreement in 
accordance with Section 100B(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the reason being to 
ensure the latest consultation response was included in the report. 
 
The Deputy Leader of the Council reported on behalf of the Portfolio holder for Housing and 
Regeneration who had submitted a report to seek Cabinet approval to Hyndburn Borough 
Council’s response to Lancashire County Council’s Integrated Home Improvement Service 
consultation exercise. 
 
Approval of the report was not deemed a key decision. 
 
Reasons for Decision  
 
Lancashire County Council (LCC), like many councils across the country, is going through 
financially challenging times. This is as a result of funding not keeping pace with the 
increasing demand and cost of services being delivered. LCC need to continue to look at 
ways of reducing costs to help balance the books for future years.  
 
This means they have to consider changes to some of the services currently provided, as 
they do not have the resources to continue to deliver what they have done in the past. 
These changes were considered by County Councillors and they are now looking to consult 
on what impact the proposals may have.  
 

Page 25



 
 
 

 

 
 

The Integrated Home Improvement Service (also known as Care and Repair) provided help 
to people in need of extra support to make their homes safe and accessible, by assisting 
homeowners to maintain, repair and improve their properties. In Hyndburn this service is 
provided by Homewise. 
 
This service supported independent living for older people, people living with physical  
disabilities and people living with long term health conditions. The Integrated Home  
Improvement Service is currently contracted to six local providers based across Lancashire 
for service delivery. 
 
LCC will continue to provide funding for minor aids and adaptations (under £1,000) to  
people who are eligible for this service. However, they are proposing to cease funding the 
Home Improvement Services that they are not legally required to provide. 
 
LCC was currently consulting with partners, stakeholders and service users. 
The consultation period runs from 18 February to 15 April 2019. The Council’s response to 
this consultation is attached at Appendix 1 for your consideration and approval. 
 
Alternative Options Considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
Hyndburn Borough Council could choose not to respond to the LCC Consultation exercise 
however as the future of Homewise was at risk, should the funding for the Home 
Improvement Service be removed this was not a sensible course of action. 
 
The withdrawal of the Homewise Home improvement Service would have a significant 
impact on many vulnerable households across the Borough especially elderly and disabled 
households and therefore the Council wants to express its strongest objection. This is a 
LCC run service and therefore Hyndburn Borough Council is not in a position to propose 
alternative options other than oppose the proposed withdrawal of the service. 

Resolved (1) That Cabinet strongly disagrees with Lancashire County 
Council’s proposals to cease funding Home 
Improvement Services; and, 

 (2) That Cabinet agreed and approved Hyndburn Borough 
Councils’ response to the Lancashire CC Integrated 
Home Improvement Service consultation exercise as 
attached at Appendix 1 in the report. 

 
360 Lease Renewal - Hyndburn Voluntary & Community Resource Centre, St James Old 

School Building, Cannon Street, Accrington 
 
The following item was submitted as urgent business with the Chair’s agreement in 
accordance with Section 100B(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the reason being to 
confirm details of the lease renewal. 
 
The Deputy Leader of the Council reported on behalf of the Portfolio holder for Housing and 
Regeneration who had submitted a report to seek Cabinet approval to accept the surrender 
of the existing lease of St James Old School Building, Cannon Street, Accrington from 
Hyndburn Voluntary & Community Resource Centre Ltd (HVCRC) and provide them with a 
new 25 year lease. 
 
Approval of the report was not deemed a key decision. 
 
Reasons for Decision  

Page 26



 
 
 

 

 
 

 
(HVCRC) currently hold a lease of the premises which is due to expire on 18th September 
2024. (HVCRC) have requested a new 25 year lease on similar terms to the existing lease 
to satisfy conditions required in relation to a grant of  £165,708 from the Reaching 
Communities - Buildings  Big Lottery Fund (BLF). This lease will facilitate HVCRC being 
able to satisfy conditions of the offer from BLF by providing to BLF a completed Certificate 
of title from their solicitor and a completed Deed of dedication and evidence that they have 
registered a restriction on the title of the land and buildings. 
 
The offer of the grant of £165,708 from BLF has been made to the HVCRC in an offer letter 
dated 24th April 2018. HVCRC will be expected to deliver building works will provide new 
modern and accessible facilities including  new kitchens and toilets, redecoration and 
replacement of internal doors throughout, in addition to an automated door entry system at 
the main entrance of the building. This work aims to increase the number of activities and 
services and number of people attending them who are elderly, disabled and indeed all 
members of the community, thus improving community cohesion, health and wellbeing and 
reduce social exclusion.  
 
The original lease of the building was granted for a term of 7 years less one day from 20th 
September 2004. The replacement lease was for a term of 3 years to 19th September 2014. 
The current lease is for a period of 10 years from 19th September 2014. All previous leases 
including the current one were granted subject to the tenant paying a nominal peppercorn 
rental. 
 
The lease will include a user clause which stipulates that the building should be used as a 
community resource centre in accordance with the tenant company’s charitable objectives.  
 
The building is currently used by a range of organisations delivering key services to a  
diverse range of groups and clients with over 300 people visiting the site weekly. A range of 
social activities take place including Yoga, dance and fitness classes available to young 
and old both during the day and in the evenings. The centre also hosts the Red Rose 
Recovery  and Smart Recovery Circle. Both groups work with vulnerable members of the 
community in helping them deal with addictions, behavioural issues, encourage self 
development and rebuild self esteem and confidence. They provide help and support 
through activities and  training and the groups work with multi-agencies to  aid recovery, 
reduce dependency on drugs and  alcohol.  
  
The grant offer is conditional on BLF approving a Capital Delivery Plan and  Business Plan 
which is currently work in progress by HVCRC and entering into a lease with the Council 
and this has been suggested by the BLF to be a term of 25 years. 
 
The lease will include a full repair and maintenance clause and, as such, it is expected that 
income derived from the activities will be reinvested into the building for maintenance and 
repairs, including those identified in a recent condition survey of the building and are not 
dependant on HVCRC receiving the grant from BLF. In 2017 HVCRC reported to BLF a 
surplus £29,018. 
  
The tenant will, in accordance with the lease, be expected to ensure they comply will all 
relevant legislation whilst in occupation and provide the Council as Landlord with evidence 
of that compliance.   
 
Alternative Options Considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 

Page 27



 
 
 

 

 
 

The building could be used as offices with a potential annual rental income of £25,000, 
however there is currently a surplus of office accommodation in the Borough therefore this 
income is not guaranteed. 
 
If an alternative use were to be supported, the Council would need to bring the current 
lease to an end by serving the appropriate notice. It would then need to advertise the 
building available to let or for sale. There is already a surplus of vacant buildings in the town 
centre and this supports the Council’s policy to transfer under used assets to suitable 
community groups where this is possible.  
 
The building could be opened up to other community groups but the Council has not been 
approached by others to manage this building. 
 
The new 25 year lease is a prerequisite of the HLF providing £160,000 to HVCRC which 
will be used to upgrade the building and facilities. Not providing the lease will jeopardise 
this funding opportunity  and HVCRC are unlikely to be able to afford to carry out these 
improvements. This does not negate their liabilities under the terms of the lease to carry 
repairs and maintenance of the site. 
   
Resolved - That Cabinet approved the surrender of the current 10 

year lease and grants a new 25 year lease to Hyndburn 
Voluntary and Community Centre Ltd at a nil rental on 
the basis that, having considered part 3 of the report, 
Cabinet is satisfied that the proposed usage of the 
building will continue to promote the social, economic 
and environmental wellbeing of the Borough. 

 
361 Energy Efficiency - CHiL Delivery Partner 

 
The following item was submitted as urgent business with the Chair’s agreement in 
accordance with Section 100B(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the reason being to 
ensure complex legal issues had been addressed. 
 
The Deputy Leader of the Council reported on behalf of the Portfolio holder for Housing and 
Regeneration who had submitted a report to inform Cabinet of the procurement process 
undertaken to appoint a delivery agent for Cosy Homes in Lancashire (CHiL).Approval was 
sought to waive the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules to seek approval for Hyndburn 
Borough Council to enter into an agreement with Rhea Projects Ltd so residents and 
households in Hyndburn have access to opportunities and funding to improve the energy 
efficiency of their homes.  
 
Approval of the report was not deemed a key decision. 
 
Reasons for Decision  
 

Hyndburn Borough Council is committed to improving the energy efficiency of domestic 

homes within the Borough. This includes addressing health inequalities exacerbated by 
living in cold and damp homes, reducing fuel poverty, tackling seasonal excess deaths and 
reducing carbon emissions from domestic properties.  
The latest fuel poverty figures available (2016) show that Hyndburn had 5,008  
households in fuel poverty representing 14.1% of households. 
  
There have been a number of initiatives and funding available to Hyndburn residents over 
the years.  Most recently this has been via the annual ‘Affordable Warmth Fund’ that has 

Page 28



 
 
 

 

 
 

provided funding for boilers, central heating systems, loft and cavity wall insulation to 
qualifying households. This has been administered locally by the Council and Homewise 
 
Cosy Homes in Lancashire (CHiL) is a brand established by the 12 district and 2 unitary 
council’s in Lancashire and the County Council to co-ordinate and deliver domestic energy 
efficiency schemes across Lancashire. CHiL has been in place since 2014 and has evolved 
from a strong track record of the council’s working collaboratively through the long 
established Lancashire Energy Officers Group. 
 
CHiL projects seek to maximise government Energy Company Obligation (ECO) and other 
grant and funding opportunities that are available for energy efficiency and heating 
measures for Lancashire residents. CHiL particularly supports those households in fuel 
poverty and vulnerable to the effects of living in a cold home. Details of the current 
affordable warmth / energy efficiency measures available for Lancashire and Hyndburn 
residents along with the qualification criteria. 
 
In order to access funding for energy efficiency through the latest government initiatives 
‘consortium’ approaches are encouraged for efficiency and economies of scale. The CHiL 
brand is Lancashire’s co-ordinated approach. It is proposed that Hyndburn BC become part 
of this consortium or collaborative working approach. 
 
In October 2018 Blackpool Council, on behalf of the other Lancashire districts, undertook a 
procurement / tender exercise to select a delivery agent for CHiL. This approach was taken 
to ensure the delivery of a common and co-ordinated approach to households accessing 
energy efficiency measures across Lancashire and to benefit from ‘economies of scale’ 
rather than each district undertaking its own procurement process. It builds on the long 
standing collaborative working between the Lancashire Authorities. Rhea Projects Ltd was 
selected as the successful delivery agent. The Council is satisfied with the procurement 
process undertaken. 
 
In order for Hyndburn residents to benefit from the outcome of the procurement process 
undertaken and for the Council to enter into its own agreement with Rhea Projects Ltd the 
Council needs to sign the Indemnity Letter with Blackpool Council.   
 
In signing the Indemnity Letter the Council is confirming that Blackpool Council was the 
lead authority in undertaking the procurement process referred to in para 3.7 above and is 
satisfied with the processes and procedures that were followed.  
 
Alternative Options Considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
The Council could undertake its own procurement exercise to appoint a Hyndburn  
delivery agent and / or approach energy companies direct to access funding for  
energy efficiency measures. This approach would be time and resource intensive.  
As stated above the Government encourages ‘consortium’ approaches for efficiency  
and economies of scale. As a Lancashire wide approach is in place through CHiL it  
seems sensible that Hyndburn becomes part of this. 
 
The Council is required to adopt a Statement of Intent for ECO Flexible Eligibility so  
qualifying households can potentially benefit from energy efficiency measures as  
part of the Government’s Energy Company Obligation Scheme. The Council could  
choose to adopt the Lancashire SOI, however it is preferable to adopt our own  
version so we have flexibility around the delivery of energy efficiency measures for  
Hyndburn residents. 

Page 29



 
 
 

 

 
 

Resolved (1) That Cabinet agreed to waive the Council’s Contract 
Procedure Rules in respect of appointment of a CHiL 
delivery agent and noted the procurement process led 
by Blackpool Council on behalf of the Lancashire local 
authorities; and, 

 (2) That Cabinet granted delegated authority to the Head of 
Regeneration and Housing, in conjunction with the 
Executive Director (Legal Services), to agree and sign 
an ‘Indemnity Letter’ in respect of the procurement 
process undertaken by Blackpool Council; and,  

 (3) That Cabinet granted delegated authority to the Head of 
Regeneration and Housing, in conjunction with the 
Executive Director (Legal Services), to agree terms for, 
and enter into, a contract / agreement with Rhea 
Projects Ltd as the delivery agent for CHiL.  

 (4) That Cabinet adopts the Hyndburn BC ‘Statement of 
Intent for ECO Flexible Eligibility’ attached as Appendix 
1 to the report. 

 
362 Exclusion of the Public 

 

Resolved -That, in accordance with Section 100A(4) Local 
Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the 
meeting during the following item, when it was likely, in 
view of the nature of the proceedings that there would 
otherwise be disclosure of exempt information within the 
Paragraph at Schedule 12A of the Act specified at the 
item. 

 
363 Disposal of 302 Burnley Road, Accrington 

 
Exempt Information under the Local Government Act 1972, Schedule 12A, Paragraph 3 – 
Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including 
the authority holding that information) 
 
The Deputy Leader of the Council reported on behalf of the Portfolio holder for Housing and 
Regeneration who had submitted an exempt report to seek Cabinet instructions for the sale 
of 302 Burnley Road, Accrington. 
 
Approval of the report was not deemed a key decision. 
 
Reasons for Decision  
 
The reasons for the decision were set out in the exempt report. 
 
Alternative Options Considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
The alternative options considered and reasons for rejection were set out in the exempt 
report. 
 
Resolved  - That the recommendations as set out in the exempt  

report be approved. 

Page 30



 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
At which the minutes were confirmed 

 
 

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 32



 
1 

 
CABINET 

 

 
Wednesday, 5th June, 2019 

 
Present:  Councillor Miles Parkinson (in the Chair), Councillors Munsif Dad, 

Joyce Plummer and Jenny Molineux 
 

In Attendance: Councillors Noordad Aziz, Tony Dobson, Glen Harrison, June Harrison 
and Eamonn Higgins 

  

Apologies: Paul Cox and Loraine Cox 
 

 
20 Apologies for Absence 

 
21 Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 

 
There were no reported declarations of interest or dispensations. 
 

22 Minutes of Cabinet 
 
The minutes of the meeting of Cabinet held on 20th March 2019 were submitted for 
approval as a correct record. 
 
Resolved – That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct 

record. 
 

23 Minutes of Boards, Panels and Working Groups 
 
The minutes of the following meeting were submitted:- 
 

 Cabinet Committee – Street Naming – 20th March 2019 
 
Resolved – That the Minutes be received and noted. 
 

24 Accrington and Rossendale and Nelson and Colne Colleges 
 
Members received a presentation by Amana Melton, Chief Executive, Accrington and 
Rossendale and Nelson and Colne Colleges, about the vision and progress of the new 
merged college for Pennine Lancashire. 
 
Ms Melton outlined the merger of the colleges with effect from 1 December 2018 and 
explained that although the corporate body was Nelson and Colne College, both Accrington 
and Rossendale College and Nelson and Colne College were equal partners and would 
retain their separate identities.  The group also encompassed Lancashire Adult Learning, 
which had been taken on board by Nelson and Colne College in 2016.  That body looked at 
working with partners to provide development opportunities for adults in need. 
 
The background to the merger with Accrington and Rossendale College was the difficult 
financial position experienced by that college, in the wake of borrowing for investments, 
which had not ultimately improved the number of students on roll.  The college had found it 

Public Document Pack

Page 33



 
 
 

 

 
 

difficult to reduce its costs and had also suffered as a result of declining funding for adult 
education.  A proposed merger with Burnley College had not come to fruition. 
 
Subsequently, central Government had approached Nelson and Colne College to develop a 
partnership and some funding had been provided to address the legacy financial issues.  
Ms Melton was optimistic that the Accrington and Rossendale College was now on a firm 
financial footing.  The meeting today was important to the college, because it would be 
reliant on the support of key local partners, such as the Borough Council, to be successful. 
 
Ms Melton outlined her own background.  She had been Principal at Nelson and Colne 
College for some 7½ years.  It was one of the highest performing Colleges in the country 
across several metrics.  The college had a strong relationship with Pendle Borough Council 
and the local community.  It had also established a Multi-Academy Trust (MAT), the Pendle 
Education Trust, which included Colne Primet Academy, Pendle Primary Academy and 
other local schools, which were highly successful.  It was hoped to replicate those levels of 
partnership working and successes within both Accrington and Rossendale College and 
Lancashire Adult Learning. 
 
The funding secured for Accrington and Rossendale College would help to address some 
in-year financial pressures and the pension deficit.  In addition, costs were being reduced.  
Across the whole college group there was a turnover of around £30M and next year’s 
budget would create a small surplus.  The new leadership of Accrington and Rossendale 
College wished to increase the college’s market share of new students and to repair any 
reputational damage.  The college had been strong in the past and was already on the way 
back to a position of strength. 
 
An improvement programme was being developed which would support three main themes: 
 

 Improving the quality of education – addressing the challenges in the region, such 
as poor Maths skills and lack of preparedness for work; 

 

 Provision of academic qualifications; 
 

 Growing the higher education offer with part-time courses leading to HNC and HND 
level qualifications for people already in work. 

 
The approach would also build upon experience that Nelson and Colne College had 
developed though its partnerships with Burnley FC, Calico Homes and East Lancashire 
Hospitals NHS Trust.  The Council was asked to think about who were the largest 
employers in Hyndburn.  Accrington and Rossendale College would work with large 
employers to produce memoranda of understanding. 
 
Overall there was a need to work collaboratively with other colleges to manage oversupply 
in the region. 
 
Ms Melton had recently been appointed to the Lancashire Local Enterprise Partnership 
(LEP) and was Chair of the Lancashire Skills and Employment Advisory Panel.  Although it 
was early days yet, she hoped to be able to influence investment in skills in the region.  Ms 
Melton was also a member of the Council of the East Lancashire Chamber of Commerce.  
A dialogue with the Borough Council was essential to ensure the future economic success 
of the area. 
 
The Leader of the Council commented that all residents would wish to see improvements in 
the prosperity of the Borough, which would be driven through quality primary, secondary 
and tertiary education.  It was hoped that Accrington and Rossendale College would be 

Page 34



 
 
 

 

 
 

able to engage not only with large scale employers, but also with small and medium 
enterprises (SMEs) and that that would stimulate the growth of the manufacturing base 
within the region. 
 
Questions were asked by Members present and answers given, on the following matters: 
 
Given the possible oversupply of provision, would the college site remain in Accrington?  -  
Around £3.5m was due to be invested to transform and update the site to make it fit for 
purpose.  This would include the levelling of one building and upgrading of standards in the 
remaining buildings.  It was estimated that the site improvements alone would lead to a 
15% increase in student numbers.  Works had already been commissioned for 
improvements to heating and lighting and IT infrastructure.  The group’s central 
administrative offices would relocate to the Accrington and Rossendale College site.  
Improvements were planned for the Construction Centre to improve its attractiveness to 
students and to create a central hub for Lancashire.  Tim Webber MBE, Chair and 
Managing Director, Barnfield Construction, would join the Board to provide experience and 
help to build links to the construction sector.  The college would be rebranded as Accrington 
and Rossendale Technical College.  However, the timescale for remodelling was 
challenging, with Government funding required to be committed by March 2020 and 
construction completed by March 2021. 
 
What was the reason for the loss of the Catering Department at the college, given that it 
had earned a good reputation?  -  The catering provision had not gone, but would refocus 
on support for apprenticeships in that sector, as the current trend was for those students to 
go straight into employment, so as to earn money while learning.  Provision would still be 
available for people with learning disabilities to serve food in the college restaurant.  
However, overall occupancy of that part of the site was very low. 
 
Nationally there was not much money available for further/higher education.  How had this 
impacted on the College?  -  The college would focus on (i) adults who did not have 
sufficient Maths and English skills to undertake employment, to look after themselves or 
their families’ health, or to contribute economically to the region; (ii) adults who wanted to 
access higher education such as HNC and HND; and (iii) adults looking to re-skill or upskill.  
However, funding was under pressure. 
 
Did the need to borrow for student loans impact on the take up of courses?  -  Overall, it 
was not believed that the student loan system had adversely affected Accrington and 
Rossendale College, but there were issues around too many students going to university, 
but receiving a product that did not meet their needs and expectations.  A Level 4 
qualification in a college or an apprenticeship, might be a more appropriate educational 
route for those individuals. 
 
Given the lessons learned from over-borrowing and reputational damage caused, how 
would the college ensure that the situation was not repeated in the future?  --  It was 
understood that the college had increased its debt at a time when its income was falling, but 
that its business model, to spend its way out of a problem, had not worked.  The college 
had been under some pressure to deliver a new building, but that had not generated 
sufficient new students in the catering side.  The college’s current borrowing levels were 
affordable and its leadership was prepared to make savings, if necessary, to balance the 
budget.  The overhanging debt had been addressed by the Government funding. 
 
Could the college provide a centre of excellence for the health sector?  -  As a general rule 
NHS organisations were hard for colleges to engage with.  However, the East Lancashire 
Hospitals NHS Trust had a jointly funded post, which helped to provide access to temporary 
posts in areas such as IT, cleaning, porters, post rooms, and healthcare.  Nelson and Colne 

Page 35



 
 
 

 

 
 

College currently worked with the Trust to provide staff with the skills they needed, which 
might lead to wider opportunities across the college group. 
 
There had previously been an adult learning outreach site in Great Harwood.  How would 
Lancashire Adult Learning continue to operate in the current challenging financial climate?  
-  It was envisaged that Lancashire Adult Learning would continue to develop.  It was grant 
funded, but the aim was to get a better return on investment for the grant available.  The 
focus would be on going to venues where there was the greatest need, for example by 
attending primary schools where the parents themselves were unable to read.  The overall 
number of people supported to learn would not reduce, but the focus of that support might 
change. 
 
Would the college be subject to more mergers in the future, particularly in the light of strong 
competition from Burnley and Blackburn Colleges?  -  There were currently no plans for 
more mergers.  However, all East Lancashire colleges would need to work together 
strategically to plan for the future. 
 
The Leader of the Council thanked Ms Melton for her attendance and engaging 
presentation, which highlighted an exciting future for Accrington and Rossendale College.  
The Council wanted all age groups, young and old to maximise their levels of achievement.  
It was hoped to invite Ms Melton to address the meeting again at some future date and an 
offer was extended to hold the meeting at the college. 
 
There were no alternative options for consideration or reasons for rejection. 
 
Resolved – That the presentation on the future of Accrington and 

Rossendale College be noted. 
 

25 Reports of Cabinet Members 
 
The Leader of the Council reported that an item appeared later in the private part of the 
Agenda, in relation to the leasing of part of King George V Playing Fields, car park and 
associated changing pavilion to Accrington Stanley FC, but it would be useful to highlight 
some key facts in the public arena. 
 
Approval of the public report was not deemed a key decision. 
 
Accrington Stanley FC had progressed a long way in the Football League and wanted to 
develop further.  The lease would bring investment into the site, including an upgraded 
playing surface.  The details of the lease were confidential, but there was an opportunity 
here to praise the club for the contribution that they had made to their home town and their 
drive to move up the League.  The Council had a good relationship with club which had 
seen development of the Crown Ground (Wham Stadium), a Sports Hub, Highams Playing 
Fields and now the King George V Playing Fields.  The Team featured regularly on 
television, which provided good publicity for the town and attracted visitors to the Borough.  
It was hoped that the new training facilities would improve the quality of football, keep 
players fit and injury free and help the club to greater glory. 
 
Councillor June Harrison commented that the site was in Barnfield Ward and that the 
residents had been supportive of the development, as the playing fields space was 
currently underused.  The Leader of the Conservative Group concurred with the sentiments 
expressed and welcomed the investment.  He had been disappointed by the initial 
proposals to build the training ground near Read, so the revised site was good news.  The 
players, club, local residents and the Council would work together to make this facility a 

Page 36



 
 
 

 

 
 

success.  This was particularly encouraging, as the asset had been struggling to find a role 
for the future. 
 
There were no alternative options for consideration or reasons for rejection. 
 
Resolved – That Cabinet noted the public report on the leasing of part of 

King George V Playing Fields, car park and associated 
changing pavilion to Accrington Stanley FC. 

 
26 Appointment of Cabinet Committees and Cabinet Groups 

 
The Leader of the Council reported on the establishment of Cabinet Committees and 
Cabinet Groups for the 2019/20 Municipal Year and the appointment of Members to the 
Committees and Groups 
 
Approval of the report was not deemed a key decision 
 
Reasons for Decision 
 
In June 2015, Cabinet established the Cabinet Committee (Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013).  
The Cabinet Committee determines whether to grant, renew, revoke or vary scrap metal 
licences pursuant to the Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013, where the applicant or licensee (as 
the case may be) has informed the Council that they wish to make oral representations.  
This enables compliance with statutory requirements. 
 
In December 2017, Cabinet established the Cabinet Committee (Street Naming).  The 
Cabinet Committee discharges the Council’s functions in respect of the naming and 
renaming of streets pursuant to Sections 17 and 18 Public Health Act 1925. 
 
In June 2018 the Cabinet established the Cabinet Committee (Digital Committee).  The 
Cabinet Committee provides a forum for Cabinet to consider the impact of the digital 
economy on the Borough and its town centres in particular. 
 
In June 2015, Cabinet also established the following three Cabinet Groups, which act in an 
advisory capacity to Cabinet and do not have any delegated or decision making powers: 
 

 Accrington Pals Centenary Commemorations Group; 

 Cabinet Public Transport Group; and 

 Cabinet Waste and Recycling Group. 
 
The above Groups will continue into 2019/20, with the name of the Accrington Pals 
Centenary Commemorations Group, being amended to the Covenant Commemoration 
Working Group and the terms of reference being amended accordingly.  The change is 
intended to reflect the broader agenda of the Armed Forces Covenant, which comprises a 
pledge between public and private sector partners that together we acknowledge and 
understand that those who serve or who have served in the armed forces, and their 
families, should be treated with fairness and respect in the communities, economy and 
society they serve with their lives. 
 
Alternative Options Considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
An option not to appoint any of the proposed Panels and Groups was considered, but would 
not meet the Cabinet’s need to establish effective arrangements for the discharge of 
specialist areas of its business. 
 

Page 37



 
 
 

 

 
 

Resolved (1) That Cabinet agreed to the establishment of the Cabinet 
Committees and Cabinet Groups, and with the terms of 
reference, as set out in the Appendix to the report; and, 

 
(2) That the membership of the Cabinet Committees and 

Cabinet Groups, as set out in paragraph 3.7 of the report 
was approved. 

 
27 Financial Position - February 2019 - Outturn Report for Year Ending 31 March 2019 

 
Councillor Joyce Plummer, Portfolio Holder for Resources, had submitted a report informing 
Cabinet of the financial spending of the Council up to the end of February 2019 and the 
financial forecast outturn position for the Accounting Year 2018/19. 
 
Approval of the report was not deemed a key decision. 
 
Reasons for Decision 
 
The spend for the first 11 months of the financial year to the end of February 2019 is 
£9,900,378 compared to a Budget of £10,190,518 giving a positive variance of £290,000 
over the first 11 months of the year. 
 
The current forecast spend to the end of the financial year in March 2019 is £10,852,000 
compared to a Budget of £11,174,000.  This forecast produces a positive variance of 
£322,000.  Parks & Cemeteries and Planning & Transportation are predicting small adverse 
variances.  Town Centre & Markets and Regeneration & Property Services are forecasting 
larger adverse variances.  All other Budget Areas are indicating a surplus position 
compared to their Budget by the year-end. 
 
Details of the most significant adverse variances are as follows: 
 
The Town Centre & Market Budget shows an overall adverse variance of almost £175,000.  
This is attributable to the continuing economic pressures limiting the generation of funds 
from the Market Hall in Accrington by £179,000 compared to Budget and other income 
down £7,000, offset by £9,000 of salary savings and £2,000 of miscellaneous additional 
costs. 
 
Regeneration & Property Services are predicting a negative variance position for the year of 
£73,000, with income up by £198,000, offset by an extra £16,000 of salary costs and 
£160,000 of miscellaneous costs, plus £95,000 of additional emergency repairs and 
maintenance expenditure. 
 
There were no alternative options for consideration or reasons proposed for rejection. 
 
Resolved – That Cabinet noted the report on the Financial Position at 

February 2019 and the financial forecast outturn position for 
the year ending 31 March 2019.  

 
With the consent of the meeting the following agenda item was taken next. 
 

28 Restructuring Kingdom Services Group Limited 
 
The Leader of the Council had submitted a report to inform the Cabinet that following a 
restructure of Kingdom Services Group Limited, of Kingdom House, 1 Woodlands Park, 
Ashton Road, Newton-le-Willows, WA12 0HF, the Division formerly known as EPD/LAS 

Page 38



 
 
 

 

 
 

would, from the 1st May 2019, become a stand-alone company within the Kingdom Group 
under the title ‘LA Support Limited‘. 
 
Approval of the report was not deemed a key decision. 
 
Reasons for Decision 
 
At its meeting on 18 July 2018, Cabinet approved the appointment of Kingdom Services 
Group Limited to provide litter and dog fouling enforcement services to the Council for a 12 
month pilot, commencing Monday 5 November 2018. 
 
Notification has been received from Kingdom Services Group Limited, confirming the 
creation of LA Support Limited as a standalone company with company number 11850540 
and with VAT registration number 318945571.  Details of the relevant insurances in the 
name of LA Support Limited have also been supplied to the Council.  
 
A letter sent to the Executive Director (Environment) gives assurances as to the service 
continuing to be supplied by the existing staff engaged on the pilot agreement with the 
Council. 
 
Alternative Options Considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
An alternative option for the Cabinet not to agree to the novation/assignment and to 
withdraw from the pilot arrangement was considered, but would not provide the continuity of 
service required. 
 
Resolved (1) That Cabinet agreed to the novation of its existing service 

level agreement from Kingdom Services Group Limited to 
LA Support Limited; and 

 
(2) That Cabinet delegated authority to the Executive Director 

(Environment) following consultation with the Executive 
Director (Legal & Democratic Services) to agree the terms 
of, and sign, the relevant Deed of Novation agreement; and 

 
(3) That Cabinet delegated authority to the Executive Director 

(Environment), following consultation with the Executive 
Director (Legal & Democratic Services) and the Portfolio 
Holder, to agree the terms of, and sign, any further 
amendments to the agreement between the Council and LA 
Support Services Ltd during the remainder of the pilot 
agreement. 

 
29 Exclusion of the Public 

 
Resolved – That, in accordance with Section 100A(4) Local Government 

Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting during 
the following items, when it was likely, in view of the nature 
of the proceedings that there would otherwise be disclosure 
of exempt information within the Paragraph at Schedule 12A 
of the Act specified at the item. 

 
The Leader of the Council and Councillor Tony Dobson both declared a personal interest in 
the following item, by virtue of their appointments as directors of Globe Enterprises Limited. 
 

Page 39



 
 
 

 

 
 

30 Disposal of Shareholdings in Globe Enterprises Limited and Sale of Freehold Land at 
Viaduct Accrington 
 
Exempt Information under the Local Government Act 1972, Schedule 12A, Paragraph 3 – 
Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including 
the authority holding that information) 
 
The Leader of the Council, who had submitted an exempt report, and Councillor Joyce 
Plummer, Portfolio Holder for Resources, reported jointly in connection with an offer to 
purchase the Council’s shareholding in Globe Enterprises Limited and the sale of freehold 
land at Viaduct, Accrington. 
 
Councillor Noordad Aziz asked a question in relation to whether, or not, the Council would 
retain any shares in Globe Enterprises Limited, to which a verbal response was provided by 
David Welsby, Chief Executive. 
 
Approval of the report was considered to be a key decision. 
 
Reasons for Decision  
 
The reasons for the decision were set out in the exempt report. 
 
Alternative Options Considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
The alternative options considered and reasons for rejection were set out in the exempt 
report. 
 
Resolved – That the recommendations as set out in the exempt report 

be approved. 
 

31 Leasing of King George V Playing Fields, Car Park and Associated Changing Pavilion 
to Accrington Stanley FC 
 
In accordance with Regulation 5(6)(a) of the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) 
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012, approval was given by 
Councillor Noordad Aziz, Chair of the Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee, to the 
following decision being made by Cabinet on 5th June 2019 in private, on the grounds that 
the decision was urgent and could not reasonably be deferred. 
 
Reason for Urgency 
 
To enable progress to be made on the arrangements for a formal lease for the use of the 
site, at the earliest opportunity, to enable the lessee to commence development of the site. 
 
Exempt Information under the Local Government Act 1972, Schedule 12A, Paragraph 3 – 
Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including 
the authority holding that information) 
 
Councillor Munsif Dad, Portfolio Holder for Education, Leisure and Arts, had submitted an 
exempt report seeking approval from Cabinet to grant a lease for King George V Playing 
Fields in Accrington, including associated car park and changing pavilion to Accrington 
Stanley Football Club Ltd. and to agree arrangements for the grant of the proposed lease 
 
Approval of the report was not deemed to be a key decision. 
 

Page 40



 
 
 

 

 
 

Reasons for Decision  
 
The reasons for the decision were set out in the exempt report. 
 
Alternative Options Considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
The alternative options considered and reasons for rejection were set out in the exempt 
report. 
 
Resolved – That the recommendations as set out in the exempt report 

be approved. 
 

32 Former Bowling Green  Bullough Park  Accrington  BB5 0LW 
 
In accordance with Regulation 5(6)(a) of the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) 
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012, approval was given by 
Councillor Noordad Aziz, Chair of the Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee, to the 
following decision being made by Cabinet on 5th June 2019 in private, on the grounds that 
the decision was urgent and could not reasonably be deferred. 
 
Reason for Urgency 
 
To enable progress to be made on the arrangements for a formal lease for the use of the 
site, at the earliest opportunity, to facilitate access by the lessee to any grant funding 
available. 
 
Exempt Information under the Local Government Act 1972, Schedule 12A, Paragraph 3 – 
Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including 
the authority holding that information) 
 
Councillor Munsif Dad, Portfolio Holder for Education, Leisure and Arts, had submitted an 
exempt report seeking approval from Cabinet to the grant of a lease to a local Community 
Interest Company of the former Bowling Green and associated buildings at Bullough Park, 
Accrington, for a period of 5 years. 
 
The Leader of the Conservative Group enquired about alternative provision available for 
bowlers in the area and the possible implications of leasing small parts of the Park site on a 
piecemeal basis.  The Leader of the Council and Portfolio Holder for Education, Leisure and 
Arts gave verbal responses. 
 
Approval of the report was not deemed to be a key decision. 
 
Reasons for Decision  
 
The reasons for the decision were set out in the exempt report. 
 
Alternative Options Considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
The alternative options considered and reasons for rejection were set out in the exempt 
report. 
 
Resolved – That the recommendations as set out in the exempt report 

be approved. 
 

 

Page 41



 
 
 

 

 
 

 
Signed:…………………………………………… 

 
Date: …………….………………………………………… 

 
Chair of the meeting 

At which the minutes were confirmed 
 

 

Page 42



 
 

 
AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 

 
Monday, 11th March, 2019 

 
Present:  Councillor Noordad Aziz (in the Chair), Councillors Bernadette Parkinson, 

Kath Pratt, Michael Miller and Tim O'Kane. 
 

Apologies Councillor Diane Fielding 

  

 
328 Apologies for Absence, Declarations of Interest, Dispensations and Substitutions 

 
Apologies for absence were submitted from Councillor Diane Fielding and Head of 
Accountancy, David Donlan. 
 
There was no substitute representative for Councillor Fielding. 
 
There were no reported declarations of interest or dispensations. 
 

329 Minutes of the Last Meeting 
 
The minutes of the last meeting held on the 19th November 2018 were submitted for 
approval.  
 
Resolved - That the minutes be received and approved as a correct  

record.  
 

330 Audit Reports and Key Issues- Progress Report for the period November 2018- 
January 2019 
 
The Head of Audit and Investigations submitted a report to inform members of the Audit 
Committee of Audit Reports issued during the period November 2018 - January 2019 and 
bring to the attention of the Committee what the key issues were.  
 
It was reported there was a target of 98% of the audit plan to be completed by the end of 
the current financial year in terms of audit days completed. The figures contained in the 
report gave updated details to the end of January 2019 (78.64% of the plan completed) and 
the projected out turn position for 2018/19 (94.37% of the plan completed). 
 
A summary of the main issues arising from audits carried out between November 2018- 
January 2019 was attached to Appendix 1 of the report and detailed both substantial and 
comprehensive audit assurance in the following areas:  
 
Substantial Assurance 
Internet and Email 
 
Comprehensive Assurance 
Civil Contingencies 
Invest to Save 
ICT Disaster Recovery 
Fleet Management 
Cashflow Management 

Public Document Pack

Page 43

Agenda Item 9.



 
 
 

 

 
 

 
The Chair enquired what the storage limit was for Council email addresses and it was 
reported that these vary dependent upon the employee and their work service area.  
 
Councillor Tim O’Kane discussed the guidelines on policing private email addresses which 
are sometimes used by Councillors opposed to the HBC email system.  
 
Resolved - That the report be noted for informational purposes. 
 

331 Audit Follow-Ups Report for the Period November 2018- February 2019 
 
 
The Head of Audit and Investigations submitted a report to inform members of the Audit 
Committee on the outcome of routine follow-ups following previous agreed action plans for 
completed Audit Records. The follow-ups detailed within the report were those carried out 
during the period November 2018- February 2019. 
 
The information on the following follow-ups were carried out during the period November 
2018 to February 2019 and were detailed within Appendix 1 of the report. 
 
Treasury Management 
1 action agreed and 1 action had been implemented 
 
Resolved - That the report be noted for informational purposes. 
 

332 Internal Audit Plan 2019-20 
 
The Head of Audit and Investigations submitted a report to inform members of the Audit 
Committee of the Internal Audit Plan for the financial year 2019/20 and to request that Audit 
Committee approve the proposed Internal Audit Plan for 2019/20. 
 
The reports asked that delegated authority be granted to the Council’s Corporate 
Management Team in conjunction with the Head of Audit & Investigations to make any 
minor amendments to the Audit Plan following approval due to Audit Committee taking 
place before Corporate Management Team. 
 
The 2019/20 Internal Audit Plan had made some alterations which reflected changes 
occurring within the Council as well as alterations designed to streamline the audit plan. 
The table in the report listed amendments to the audit plan and also areas added.  
 
Two new audit areas had been added to the audit plan and other parts of the report 
highlighted risk factors along with high, medium and low risk areas. 
  
The internal audit plan summary for 2019/20 was attached to the agenda as appendix 1. 

 
Councillor Michael Miller asked what the criteria was for planning applications that go to 
Committee or be delegated by Officers. The Chair advised Councillor Miller to speak with 
Simon Prideaux, the Council’s Chief Planning and Transportation Officer to clarify the 
information to his questions.  
 
Councillor Tim O’Kane also discussed delegated decisions and the Head of Audit and 
Investigations reported work would be undertaken on this topic in the next financial year.  

Resolved - (1) That Audit Committee noted the contents of the 
report. 

Page 44



 
 
 

 

 
 

 - (2) That Audit Committee approved the Internal Audit 
Plan for the financial year 2019/20. 

 - (3) That Audit Committee delegated authority to 
Corporate Management Team to make any minor 
amendments to the Audit Plan in conjunction with the 
Head of Audit & Investigations following Committee 
approval due to the Audit Committee meeting being 
before the Corporate Management Team meeting. 

 
333 Annual Accounts 2018/19 Arrangements 

 
The Deputy Chief Executive reported on behalf of the Head of Accountancy, who had 
submitted a report to update Members of the Audit Committee on the arrangements made 
to date and the implications of the changes required for the Council ahead of the closure of 
the 2018/19 accounts. It also seeked approval for the accounting policies to be used in 
producing the Statement of Accounts as set out in Appendix 1 of the report. 

Resolved - (1) That the report and arrangements that the Council is 
making in advance of the closure of accounts for the 
year 2018/19 be noted for informational purposes. 

 - (2) That Audit Committee approved the proposed 
accounting policies to be followed in producing the 
statement of Accounts as shown in Appendix 1 of the 
report attached to the agenda. 

 
334 Grant Thornton - External Audit Plan (Year ending 31 March 2019) 

 
The Engagement Lead from Grant Thornton, Andrew Smith, provided Members of  
the Audit Committee with an overview of the planned scope and timing of the  
statutory audit of Hyndburn Borough Council for those charged with governance. 
 
The contents of the report detailed matters and risks which had come to their attention and 
included: 
 

 Group accounts 

 Significant risks 

 Materiality 

 Value for money arrangements 

 Audit logistics 

 Independence 
 
Appendix 1 attached to agenda contained information on audit approaches and  
technology. 
 
 Resolved - That the report be noted for informational purposes. 
 

335 Grant Thornton- Certification work for Hyndburn Borough Council for year ended 31 
March 2018 
 
The Engagement Manager at Grant Thornton, Helen Stevenson, informed members of the 
Annual Audit Letter which summarised Grant Thornton’s responsibility to certify the Housing 
Benefit subsidy claim submitted by Hyndburn Borough Council. The certification typically 

Page 45



 
 
 

 

 
 

takes place six to nine months after the claim period and represents a final but important 
part of the process to confirm the Council's entitlement to funding. 
 
The subsidy claim related to expenditure of £25.4m and further details of their findings were 
detailed in Appendix A of the report attached to the agenda.  
 

 These included:  

 Claimant income 

 Local housing allowance 

 Family premium 

 Software issues 
 
Appendix B of the report provided information of fees for 2017/18 certification work.  

Resolved - That the letter and report be noted for informational 
purposes. 

 
336 Audit Progress Report and Sector Update (Grant Thornton) 

 
Grant Thornton submitted a report which informed members of the Audit Committee with an 
update on progress as of March 2019 in delivering Grant Thornton’s responsibilities as 
external auditors to the Council. It included a summary of emerging national issues and 
developments that were relevant and a number of challenging questions in respect of 
emerging issues which the Committee considered. 
 
Helen Stevenson of Grant Thornton went through the report with a summary of details for 
each section, which included:  
 

 Progress at March 2019 

 Audit deliverables 

 Sector update 

 Public Sector Audit Appointments- Report on the result of auditors’ work  
2017/18 

 National Audit Office- Local auditor reporting in England 2018 

 National Audit Office- Local authority governance 

 CIPFA- Financial resilience index plans revised 

 ICEAW report- Expectations gap 

 Financial foresight- Our sustainable solution for cash strapped councils 

 Brexit room- Increasing readiness and resilience within your locality 

 MHCLG- Social Housing Green Paper 

 Institute of Fiscal Studies- Impact of ‘Fair funding review’ 

 National Audit Office- The health and social care interface 

 A caring society- Bringing together innovative thinking, people and practice 

 Care homes for the elderly- Where are we now 

 In good company- Latest trends in local authority trading companies 

 Links 
 
Councillor Miller asked what were the optimum reserve levels for a Council in relation to the 
contents of the report for cash strapped Councils. The Deputy Chief Executive stated it was 
his responsibility to set reserve levels and between £2m-£3m should be sufficient to cover 
the Council’s financial position.  
 

Resolved - That the report be noted for informational  
purposes. 

Page 46



 
 
 

 

 
 

 
337 Time/Date/Venue of Next Meeting of Committee 

 
Resolved - That the next meeting of the Audit Committee be held 

on Monday 29th July 2019 at 5.00pm in Scaitcliffe House, 
subject to confirmation at the Council’s AGM in May. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
At which the minutes were confirmed 

 
 

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 48



 
 

 
RESOURCES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 

 
Thursday, 14th March, 2019 

 
Present:  Councillor Jenny Molineux (in the Chair),  

Councillors Noordad Aziz, Lisa Allen, Jean Battle, Stephen Button, 
Terry Hurn and Tim O'Kane 
Co-optees: County Councillor Bernard Dawson 

In Attendance: Councillor Joyce Plummer  

 
338 Apologies for absence, Substitutions, Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 

 
There were no apologies for absence. 
 
There were no substitute representatives. 
 
Councillor Tim O’Kane declared an interest in item 6 of the agenda as he was secretary of 
Clayton Boxing Club and they could be a prospective tenant of Clayton Civic Hall.  
 
Councillor Stephen Button also declared an interest in item 6 as he was a founder of Fields 
Bottom Community Group and they were interested in land at Warwick Avenue. He also 
worked for Hyndburn CVS and they audited the accounts at Hyndburn Voluntary Resource 
Centre on Cannon Street. 
 
Councillor Noordad Aziz, who attended the meeting after it had started, subsequently  
declared an interest in the Cross Gates garage site in Great Harwood due to a resident 
approaching him in relation to the location and then being provided with the contact details 
for Officers at the Council.  
 

339 Minutes of Last Meeting(s) 
 
The minutes of the Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on the 12th February 
2019 and the minutes of the Resources Overview and Scrutiny (Call in) Committee held on 
the 4th March 2019 were submitted for approval as a correct record. 
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct # 

record. 
 

340 ICT Report on outcomes of Previous Scrutiny Recommendations (12 October 2016) 
 
The Portfolio Holder for Resources (Councillor Joyce Plummer) submitted a report to 
update progress made against recommendations noted on the 12th October 2016. 
 
The recommendations listed then, included: 
 

 That Cabinet be requested to ensure that the new website is user friendly for 
customers; 

 

 That Cabinet be requested to investigate ways to make the online payment system 
simpler for customers to use; 

 

Public Document Pack

Page 49



 
 
 

 

 
 

 That Cabinet be requested to work with the Head of ICT to explore the possibility of 
the introduction of an integrated system for the website which would require only 
one simple login from a customer regardless of what service they required access 
to; and, 

 

 That Cabinet be requested to ensure the new website and My Hyndburn app are 
compatible with assistive technologies in order to make them more accessible to 
residents who are visually impaired, elderly or those who have low literacy skills. 

 
Two advanced questions had been submitted in relation to this agenda item. 
 

1. How do the different service areas contribute to the development of IT systems for 
their service area? 

2. Can you explain in more detail why the “single sign in” for online customers is not 
practical, and any potential solutions to this? 

 
The Head of ICT Services responded to a number of questions from Members and stated 
that she had met with all service heads since being in post to discuss all systems. The 
Chief Planning and Transportation Officer would be contacted after Councillor O’ Kane 
raised concerns with finding planning applications on the portal.  
 
Councillor Allen commented that after moving house the online system would not register 
for a change in Council Tax payments.   
 
Resolved - That the contents of the report be noted. 
 

341 Hyndburn Leisure Trust 
 
The Chief Executive of Hyndburn Leisure, Lyndsey Sims submitted a report to provide a 
financial update for Overview and Scrutiny highlighting areas in which HBC have invested 
capital funding.  
 
The report addressed in detail the following issues, which included:- 
 

 2018/19 Income performance 

 Impact of grant reduction and lack of growth in key service areas 

 Capital Development 

 Organisational review 

 Procurement  

 Service/ Income Growth Priorities 2019/20 

 Fees & Charge review 2019/20 

 External funding and commissions 
 
An overview of the Trust’s current financial position was communicated to Members with 
details provided on turnover and operating budgets along with the number of employees 
and facilities they operate.  
 
There had been no advance questions submitted prior to the meeting and Members present 
asked the following: 
 

 In three years when the funding contribution ceases from the Council would this 
impact upon levels of service. 

 Had the swimming pool incident in the last year left the Trust vulnerable to social 
media attacks. 

Page 50



 
 
 

 

 
 

 Is the job evaluation process a cost saving exercise or a way to award fair payment. 

 Does the Trust need to look at public transport arrangements in relation to Hyndburn  
Leisure Centre as there were no bus stops along Hyndburn Road. 

 
The Chief Executive reported that once the Council’s £75,000 contribution ceases the Trust 
would be working towards a balancing budget with an aim towards health and wellbeing 
services.  
 
Whilst negative media coverage can impact upon the brand promotional work had  
been undertaken with local schools.  
 
The Job evaluation scheme was to award fair pay and transport issues would be part of a 
capital review. 
 
Resolved - That the contents of the report be noted and that an  

update be provided to Overview & Scrutiny in the next 12 
months.  

 
342 Exclusion of the Public 

 
Resolved - That, in accordance with Section 100A(4) Local 

Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from 
the meeting during the following item, when it is 
likely, in view of the nature of the proceedings that 
there would otherwise be disclosure of exempt 
information within Paragraph 4 at Schedule 12A of the 
Act specified at the item. 

 
343 Land & Asset Disposals 

 
Exempt Information under the Local Government Act 1972, Schedule 12A, Paragraph 4 – 
Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or contemplated consultations or 
negotiations in connection with any labour relations matter arising between the authority or 
a Minister of the Crown and employees of, or office holders under, the Authority. 
 
The Regeneration and Property Manager submitted an exempt report to inform Overview 
and Scrutiny on the latest land and asset disposals. 
 
Resolved - That the contents of the report be noted and any answers  

to the questions raised during discussion of the item be passed 
onto the Overview and Scrutiny Officer for distribution to 
Members of the committee. 

 
 
 

 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
At which the minutes were confirmed 

 
 

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 52



 

 
1 

 
JUDICIAL COMMITTEE (PRIVATE HIRE AND HACKNEY 

CARRIAGE LICENSING) 
 

 
Wednesday, 20th March, 2019 

 
Present:  Councillor Melissa Fisher (in the Chair), Councillors Joyce Plummer (Vice 

Chair), Stewart Eaves, Lisa Allen, Terry Hurn and Parkins 
 

Apologies Eamonn Higgins 

  

 
344 Apologies for absence, Substitutions, Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 

 
An apology for absence was submitted on behalf of Councillor Higgins. 
 
Councillor Parkins acted as substitute representative for Councillor Higgins. 
 
There were no interests declared at the meeting. 
 

345 Minutes of Last Meeting Held on 19th December 2018 
 
The Minutes of the meeting of the Judicial Committee (Private Hire and Hackney Carriage 
Licensing) held on 19th December 2018 were submitted for approval as a correct record. 
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct 

record. 
 

346 Licensing Procedure for Meetings of the Committee 
 
The General Licensing Procedure to be followed at the meeting in relation to Hackney 
Carriage and Private Hire drivers licences was submitted.  A copy of the procedure had 
been sent to those attending the meeting. 
 
Resolved - That the Procedure be noted. 
 

347 Licensing Guidelines 
 
The Institute of Licensing Policy for Hackney Carriage and Private Hire trades was 
submitted to assist Hyndburn Borough Council when determining the suitability of 
applicants and licensees in the Hackney Carriage and Private Hire trades.  This replaced 
the previous convictions policy and was approved by Cabinet on the 10th October 2018. 
 
A copy of the Guidance was sent to those attending the meeting. 
 
Resolved - That the Guidelines be noted. 
 

348 Exclusion of the Public 
 
Resolved - That, in accordance with Section 100A(4) Local 

Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the 
meeting during the following items, when it was likely, 
in view of the nature of the business to be transacted, or 

Page 53



 
 
 

 

 
2 

the nature of the proceedings, that there would 
otherwise be disclosure of exempt information within 
the Paragraphs at Schedule 12A of the Act specified at 
items. 

 
349 Report Relating to a Licensed Private Hire Driver (MS) 

 
(Exempt Information under the Local Government Act 1972, Paragraph 1 – Information 
relating to any individual) 
 
The Licensing Enforcement Officer submitted a report informing the Committee of relevant 
issues relating to a licensed private hire vehicle driver licence (MS) and an Operator’s 
licence.  A complaint had been lodged against the private hire driver (MS) and was set out 
in the report.  Members were also requested to consider if the matters contained within the 
report gave reasonable cause to suspend, revoke, issue a warning or take no further action 
about the private hire operator’s licence.     
 
In accordance with licensing procedure, the private hire driver (MS) and a representative 
had been invited to attend the meeting and both were in attendance. 
 
The private hire driver’s representative referred to the issue relating to the Operator’s 
licence as set out in the report and pointed out that the licence had been made in the 
company’s name.  The representative indicated that as this was a joint business venture 
and no notice of the meeting had been given to the business partner it would be unfair to 
pursue proceedings as the outcome of the hearing would equally affect both partners.   
 
After a short adjournment a copy of the Operator’s licence was circulated amongst the 
attendees of the meeting.  In light of this information Members came to the conclusion that 
it would not be fair or appropriate to proceed with the hearing in respect of the Operator’s 
licence.  The Committee therefore commenced the meeting giving consideration only to the 
private hire driver’s licence. 
 
Attention was drawn to the policy and guidelines on the relevance of the incidents set out in 
the report and the applicant’s previous history and convictions as a private hire driver for 
Hyndburn Borough Council. 
 
The following documents were appended to the report:  
 
Appendix 1 – Warning issued 
Appendix 2 – Warning issued 
Appendix 3 – Grant of application with warning in February 2014 
 
The Committee was requested to consider whether the applicant was a safe and suitable 
person to be a licensed private hire driver. 
 
The Licensing Enforcement Officer and the Licensing Manager provided information in 
respect of an incident in January 2019 and the private hire driver’s previous work history 
and responded to Members’ questions in respect of further clarification of events.  The 
applicant was provided with an opportunity to respond to questions submitted by Members 
in relation to this incident and questions relating to his past history.   
 
The private hire driver’s representative informed the Committee that his client had felt that 
the Licensing Officers had been unnecessarily harsh in raising a number of issues relating 
to the private hire driver’s behaviour which had resulted in a letter of complaint to the 

Page 54



 
 
 

 

 
3 

Council.  After a short adjournment a response to a complaint submitted by the private hire 
driver was read out to the Committee. 
 
The Committee was requested to:- 
 

(a) Determine whether the facts related in the complaint were substantially true; 
(b) Having made a finding of the facts, decide whether those facts revealed if the driver 

had acted either unlawfully or in breach of any legislations, regulation or licence 
condition governing the conduct of licensed private hire drivers; and  

(c) Determine what action, if any, should be taken against the driver. 
 
 
Decision of the Committee:- 

Resolved - That the complaint against the private hire driver (MS) 
be upheld.  The Committee accepted the evidence 
provided by the Licensing Officers and found that the 
behaviour of the driver had been consistently 
inappropriate and that he was not considered to be a 
‘safe and suitable person’ to hold a private hire driver’s 
licence.  The Committee determined that his private hire 
driver's licence be revoked pursuant to Section 61(1)(b) 
of the Local Government Act 1976 for the reasons 
outlined at the meeting and set out in the decision 
notice. 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
At which the minutes were confirmed 

 
 

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
1 

 
COMMUNITIES AND WELLBEING OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 

COMMITTEE 
 

 
Thursday, 21st March, 2019 

 
Present:  Councillor Glen Harrison (in the Chair),  

Councillors Bernadette Parkinson (Vice Chair), Loraine Cox, 
Judith Addison, June Harrison and Lisa Allen 
Cooptees Bernard Dawson 
 

In Attendance:  

  

Apologies:  
 

 
367 Apologies for Absence and Substitutions 

 
There were no apologies for absence submitted or substitutions. 
 

368 Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 
 
There were no declarations of interest submitted at the meeting or dispensations. 
 

369 Minutes of Last Meeting 31st October 2018 
 
The Minutes of the Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 
31st October 2018 were submitted for approval as a correct record. 
  
Resolved        -      That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct record. 
 

370 Police and Crime Report 
 
Inspector Rides and Sergeant Kennedy gave a presentation on Police and Crime in 
Hyndburn and reported on performance data.    
 
Inspector Rides reported on changes in neighbourhood policing and informed the 
Committee that there had been a reduction in Community Beat Managers from fourteen to 
seven.  He reported on the number of Officers linked to an area and that they would be 
returning to a previous style of policing of patrolling and being visible in communities as 
they had been 10 years ago and referred to the importance of community intelligence in 
resolving crime.  He informed the Committee that for policing purposes Hyndburn was split 
into three areas Hyndburn North, South and Central and gave details of reported crime in 
the following areas: environmental crime, domestic violence, violent crime, serious and 
organised crime, acquisitive crime.  He gave details of statistical data for each area of 
crime.   
 
Attendees at the meeting asked if: 

- Lists of PCSOs for each ward could be distributed to all Members. 
- If there were plans to reintroduce Officers to PACT meetings. 
- For further information about the burning taking place at a scrap yard in Great 

Harwood.   

Page 57



 
 
 

 

 
2 

 
Inspector Rides indicated that he would distribute lists of ward PCSOs to all Members and 
that Officers would be reintroduced to PACT meetings.  He also informed the Committee 
that the Police used many different forms of media to communicate with the public and 
whilst PACT meetings were useful for reaching some residents he also referred to the 
importance of social media in reaching residents to communicate with people.  Inspector 
Rides reported that the burning in Great Harwood was being dealt with by a number of 
agencies. 
 
He gave details of how domestic violence, violent crime, serious and organised crime and 
acquisitive crime was dealt with by the Police and how they worked with other agencies 
 
Attendees at the meeting asked: 
 

- How domestic violence cases were brought to the attention of the authorities.   
- The impact of the new stalking laws 
- What restrictions could be placed on an offender? 
- If the Police could use stop and search more regularly? 
- What actions were being taken by the Police to reduce knife crime? 
- What action had been taken against the market seller selling knives? 
- A request for knife crime data. 
- What actions were being taken to prevent drug problems in areas? 
- How problematic was human trafficking in Hyndburn? 
- Reference was made to the problem of brothels in Belthorn.   
- How was the increase in council tax for the PCC being spent? 
- Reference was made to an incidents of scamming in Knuzden and if Police were 

aware of the issue. 
- A request for updates on incidents which have happened in Baxenden including the 

violent burglary of an elderly lady. 
- How CCTV was monitored in Hyndburn? 
- How Police Cadets were recruited? 

 
Inspector Rides responded that domestic violence cases were usually reported by someone 
in that household and the first priority when dealing with incidents was to ensure that 
relevant interventions were put in place to protect children against the impact of this.  He 
reported that the new stalking laws provided for greater awareness of the issue and that 
there was a distinction between harassment and stalking.  He explained that there were a 
number of restrictions that could be placed on offenders. 
 
In respect of ‘stop and search’ he reported that the Police required good reasons to use this 
which would have to be authorised from senior officers.  He reported that there was no 
evidence of an increase in knife crime in Hyndburn but would provide data on knife crime 
when it was available.  He explained the Market Seller had been spoken to by both the 
Markets Manager about the sale of knives and by the Police who had explained the law.  
He reported that they had agreed not to sell some of the more combat type knives.     
 
In respect of drug problems, concerns about human trafficking, scamming and brothels he 
made a note of the incidents referred to by Members and explained that the Police collected 
intelligence with regards to incidents of these types in order to take action at a later date.  
He indicated that the burglary incident in Baxenden was still under investigation.  He 
reported that Hyndburn Borough Council worked and funded CCTV coverage with 
Blackburn with Darwen Borough Council to provide and monitor CCTV coverage.  
 
He reported that there had been an increase in council tax for PCC to enable greater 
neighbourhood policing.   

Page 58



 
 
 

 

 
3 

 
He explained to the Committee that they aimed to recruit younger children to the Police 
Cadets and referred to the importance of providing activities for children and young people 
in order to keep them off the streets and out of trouble.  He explained that Community 
Protection Orders could be used when necessary.   
 
The Chair of the Committee thanked Inspector Rides and Sergeant Kennedy for attending 
the Committee.  

Resolved - That the presentation be noted.  
 
 

371 Impact of the Closure of the Walk In Centre at Accrington Victoria Hospital 
 
Alex Walker and Lisa Cunliffe, Community Care Group, gave a presentation on the impact 
of the closure of the Walk-In Centre, Accrington Victoria Hospital.   
 
Lisa Cunliffe, Primary Care Development Manager reported on the transition from the Walk-
In Centre to a GP Extended Service and Care Navigation after the closure of the Walk-In 
Centre.    
 
She referred to the background to the decision to close the Walk-In Centre and the amount 
of work carried out by the CCG in 2015/16 in engaging with the local population to ask for 
their views.  She reported that groups across East Lancashire had supported the closure 
and that services throughout East Lancashire had not been consistent.  She referred to 
ways in which people had wanted to improve services including the ability to pre-book 
appointments, the continuity of care, access to medical records away from the GP surgery 
and access to better information and services.  She outlined the principle of the new model 
of health care provision and reported that running alongside the new model were the 
national requirements of GP extended access.  She also referred to analysis of the impact 
on other local health services once the Walk In Centre had been closed.  Alex Walker 
provided details of this and pointed out that their predictions had been relatively accurate 
with provision in place to meet demand. 
 
Lisa Cunliffe referred to Care Navigation and the provision that had been put in place to 
provide this service.  
 
Members asked for the following information: 
 

 How people would be able to attend appointments away from their normal GP 
surgeries, especially as there was a lack of bus service. 

 How many GP Practices in Hyndburn offer Out-of-Hour services? 

 If frontline healthcare staff had been adequately trained to provide the services 
being offered? 

 Had there been an increase in the number of GPs appointed to deal with the 
additional services? 

 Did the new system provide adequate accessibility to health care services? 

 Had the impact been measured on the Royal Blackburn Hospital Urgent Care 
service? 

 How was the former Walk-in Centre being used now? 

 Had job roles changed since the introduction of the new health care model? 

 Concern about accepting appointment from doctors outside the current area. 

 Concerns about some items on repeat prescription not being available. 

 A request for the personnel breakdown of the CCG membership. 

Page 59



 
 
 

 

 
4 

 Had the staff from the Walk-In Centre been redeployed? 

 Booking out of hours appointments was still difficult to do and some patients had 
never been offered the opportunity to do this.  There was also no access to medical 
records. 

 Concern that the figures provided with regards to the success of the new healthcare 
model did not accurately reflect the actual service provided and that the provision of 
services was limited. 

 An increase in housing provision in the borough would have an impact on the 
amount of healthcare required.   

 An increase in digital services could mean that some patients may feel that services 
could be out of their reach. 

 There was a variance in access to prescription items by different pharmacies across 
the borough. 

Members were provided with responses to the above queries as follows: 
 
Members were informed that patients would not have to accept appointments anywhere 
they were not able to attend and that most would be allocated within their own area.  Lisa 
Cunliffe reported that all GP Practices should supply out of hour services and that the 
provision of this would be monitored.  She reported that all frontline staff had attended 
rigorous training and would be able to provide the services offered.  She also reported that 
there was a large pool of GPs who worked on a rota system and that this allowed them to 
cope with the demands of the new system.  In respect of accessibility to a GP she reported 
that the NHS was under immense strain and that work was taking place behind the scenes 
to ensure that adequate provision was available.  In respect of some Pharmacies having 
difficulty in providing prescription items she reported that she would speak to the relevant 
authority in respect of this.  She informed the Committee that hospital had access to a 
summary of a patient’s medical records and not the full record so would need to verify the 
patient’s needs before treating them.   
 
Alex Walker reported that additional services were planned to ensure adequate healthcare 
provision for the proposed additional housing provision in the borough.    He reported that 
some prescription items were cheaper to buy over the counter rather than get them on 
prescription.   
 

Resolved (1) That the CCG works with GP Surgeries to help raise 
awareness amongst patients of the availability of 
appointments through the Extended Hours Service;  

 (2) That the CCG investigates the potential variances in 
accessing prescription items through pharmacies; and  

 (3) That the CCG be requested to provide Councillors with 
information relating to the medicines no longer 
available on prescription.  

  
 

 
Signed:…………………………………………… 

 
Date: …………….………………………………………… 

 
Chair of the meeting 

At which the minutes were confirmed 
 

Page 60



 
 
 

 

 
5 

 

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
PLANNING (TREES) SUB-COMMITTEE 

 

 
Thursday, 4th April, 2019 

 
Present:  
 
 

Councillor Melissa Fisher (in the Chair),  
Councillors Judith Addison, Loraine Cox, Stewart Eaves and 
Eamonn Higgins 
  
 

  

In Attendance: Katie Morley and Simon Prideaux & 1 Member of the Press 
 

 
383 Apologies for Absence, Substitutions, Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 

 
There were no apologies for absence. 
 
There were no substitute representatives. 
 
There were no reported declarations of interest or dispensations.  
 

384 Minutes of the Last Meeting 
 
The minutes of the last Planning (Trees) Sub-Committee held on the 23rd January 2019, 
were submitted for approval as a correct record. 
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct  

record. 
 

385 Town and Country Planning Act 1990- New Tree Preservation Order(s) 
 
The Chief Planning & Transportation Officer and the Arboricultural & Conservation Officer 
submitted a report setting out recommended action on whether the temporary Tree 
Preservation Order (TPO) that had been placed on the tree detailed below in March 2019 
should be made permanent. 
 
Sycamore Tree in the grounds of Greystoke, 26 Aspen Lane, Oswaldtwistle, BB5 4QA  
 
The Chief Planning and Transportation Officer presented information and photographs of 
the tree and advised Members that an assessment of the tree had been undertaken and 
was included in Appendix 1 of the report attached to the agenda.  
 
Members were made aware by Officers that one objection had been made although this 
was still to be received formally in writing.  
 
N.B: The Chief Planning and Transportation Officer submitted an update report which was 
circulated at the meeting. This included comments from a local resident, Ward Councillor 
and Stanhill Village Residents and Fete Committee in support of a permanent TPO. 
 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 63



 
 
 

 

 
 

Resolved  - (1) That the Temporary Tree Preservation Order be made  
permanent as per the Officer’s recommendation in the report, 
subject to no further objections and representations made by 
the 11th April 2019. 

 
The Chief Planning & Transportation Officer and the Arboricultural & Conservation Officer 
submitted a report setting out recommended action on whether the temporary Tree 
Preservation Order (TPO) that had been placed on the trees detailed below in February 
2019 should be made permanent. 
 
Trees at White Croft Farm, White Croft Lane, Oswaldtwistle, BB5 3RJ 
 
The Chief Planning and Transportation Officer presented information and photographs of 
the trees and advised Members that an assessment of the trees had been undertaken and 
was included in Appendix 1 of the report attached to the agenda.  
 
Resolved  - (2) That the Temporary Tree Preservation Order be made  

permanent as per the Officer’s recommendation in the report. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
At which the minutes were confirmed 

 
 

Page 64



 
 

 
MANAGEMENT REVIEW COMMITTEE 

 

 
Wednesday, 10th April, 2019 

 
Present:  Councillor Miles Parkinson (in the Chair), Councillors Paul Cox and 

Tony Dobson 

  

  

 
386 Apologies for absence, Substitutions and Declarations of Interest 

 
There were no apologies for absence or declarations of interest. 
 

387 Minutes of Last Meeting 
 
The Minutes of the meeting of the Management Review Committee held on the 31st 
October 2018 were submitted for approval as a correct record. 
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct 

record. 
 

388 Revised Disciplinary Procedure 
 
The Head of Policy and Organisational Development submitted a report to seek formal 
approval of a revised Disciplinary Procedure.  She provided details of the revised policy and 
pointed out that discussions had been undertaken with Unison and any differences of 
opinion had been resolved.  She indicated that training would be provided to Service 
Managers. 
 
Resolved (1) That the revised Disciplinary Procedure be approved; 

and  
         (2) That the Head of Policy and Organisational Development 

implements the new procedure and provides training for 
Service Managers via the Hyve e-learning system. 

 
389 Comment From Unison 

 
Vanessa Tate, Unison Branch Secretary, referred to an internal recruitment issue which 
had not been communicated to staff and Unison believed had not carried out within the 
normal recruitment processes.  She requested that the Committee gave consideration to 
ensuring that staff appointments followed the normal processes, that recruitments were 
carried out on a fair basis and that staff were kept aware of new appointments.  
 
The Leader of the Council acknowledged Unison’s comments and indicated that they 
intended to improve communications with staff in the future. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 65



 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
At which the minutes were confirmed 

Page 66



 
 

 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

 
Wednesday, 24th April, 2019 

 
Present:  Councillor Eamonn Higgins (in the Chair),  

Councillors Loraine Cox (Vice Chair), Judith Addison, Jean Battle, 
Stephen Button, Stewart Eaves, Melissa Fisher, June Harrison, 
Marlene Haworth, Abdul Khan, Dave Parkins and Paddy Short 
 

Apologies: Councillor Kath Pratt 

  

 
390 Apologies for Absence, Substitutions, Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 

 
Apologies for absence were submitted from Councillor Kath Pratt. 
 
There was no substitute representative for Councillor Pratt. 
 
There were no reported declarations of interest or dispensations.  
              
 

391 Minutes of the Last Meeting 
 
The minutes of the last Planning Committee held on the 23rd January 2019, were submitted 
for approval as a correct record. 
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct  

record. 
 

392 Town and Country Planning Act 1990- Planning Applications for Determination 
 
The Chief Planning and Transportation Officer submitted a report setting out recommended 
action on the following planning applications. 
 

Resolved  - (1) (a) That the following planning application be 
approved subject to the conditions as per the report, 
amendment to the S106 being signed under (11/19/0024) 
and no objection from the Highways Authority with a final 
agreement to be made in terms of the traffic and 
highways works which are required for the development, 
and:- 

 
- (b) That delegated authority be granted to the Chief 
Planning and Transportation Officer to finalise the 
wording of the relevant conditions.    

 
 

11/19/0016 Unit 1 The Peel Centre Whitebirk Rishton  
Major full: Relocation of existing subdivision within unit 1, 
change of use of the remodelled Unit 1B from Class A1 
(retail) to Class D2 (assembly and leisure), and installation of 
a mezzanine floor. 

Public Document Pack

Page 67



 
 
 

 

 
 

 
N.B. 1. The Chief Planning and Transportation Officer drew the Committee’s 

attention to the extra information contained within the update report which 
was released before the meeting and related to the above planning 
application. 

 
 2. Mr Gareth Finch spoke at the Committee in support of the above planning 

application and in favour of the Officer’s recommendation to approve 
planning permission. 

 
 

Resolved  - (2) (a) That the modification to the Section 106 
agreement be approved, subject to the conditions as per 
the report:-   

 
- (b) That delegated authority be granted to the Chief 
Planning and Transportation Officer to finalise the 
wording of the relevant conditions.    

 
11/19/0024 Unit 1 The Peel Centre Whitebirk Rishton 

Planning Obligation modification sought to Section 106  
dated 23/06/09 

 
N.B. The Chief Planning and Transportation Officer drew the Committee’s 

attention to the extra information contained within the update report which 
was released before the meeting and related to the above planning 
application. 

 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
At which the minutes were confirmed 

 
 

Page 68



 

REPORT TO: Council 

DATE: 04 July 2019 

REPORT AUTHOR: Julian Joinson, Head of Member Services 

TITLE OF REPORT: Motion(s) for Debate at Council -  

1. M65 
2. Power Up the North 
3. Free TV Licences for the Over 75s 
4. Integrated Home Service Improvement 

Contracts 
5. Stanhill Road Motorway Bridge 
6. Review use of herbicides and pesticides 

EXEMPT REPORT:  No  

KEY DECISION: No If yes, date of publication: n/a 

 
Council will be asked to consider the following motions submitted under Council Procedure 
Rule A9:- 
 
1. M65 
 
That this Council resolves to write to Highways England and Transport for the North in 
relation to the consultation currently being undertaken in relation to the M65.  We in Hyndburn 
have been at the forefront of making the case for the M65 to link into Yorkshire and the 
A1(M).  We also attach in the letter the past motions related to the M65 to highlight the 
unanimity support from within the council chambers for better infrastructure in the region.  We 
in Hyndburn wholeheartedly support a complete link up from M65 to the A1(M) allowing East 
Lancashire to access regional economic centres, airport and ports more easily and efficiently. 
 
Better road links and infrastructure from this area will promote economic and social mobility 
by allowing improving access and adding capacity on the Road network in the North 
especially East West Connectivity.  A number of examples are outlined below: 
 
1. For Hyndburn both the nearest International Airports from Accrington, Manchester 

International Airport and Leeds Bradford International Airport are almost equidistant but 
the average commute time is almost 66% greater for Leeds Bradford compared to 
Manchester. This restricts access for commuters in East Lancashire and leads to 
normally incurring a premium to use Manchester Airport.  Leeds Bradford has plans to 
increase passenger numbers to 7 million from the current 4 million and that can only be 
achieved with better links from East Lancashire and the upgrade of the M65 to link into 
Yorkshire. 

 
2. Access to more high skilled jobs from East Lancashire region.  The number of high skilled 

jobs have eroded as the industry has declined in the area.  The M65 link will allow access 
to large corporates as well as access to Leeds, the largest Financial Services Sector in 

Page 69

Agenda Item 10.



 

the United Kingdom outside Canary Wharf worth an estimated £2.1bn.  This will allow 
commutable time to be around 1hr.  This improved accessibility will allow East Lancashire 
to attempt to stem the Brain Drain, where it loses its best and brightest to the economic 
centres due to limited career prospects in the region. 

 
3. The M65 Link to Yorkshire will give access to new markets for businesses based in East 

Lancashire as well more efficient routes to the ports on the east coast.  Road Freight from 
East Lancashire is limited to the congested M62 or country roads along the A59.  Neither 
is fit for purpose and are operating at full capacity throughout the day.  Companies in the 
area like Emerson & Renwick, Senator, Simon Jersey, Exertis and Wham to name a few 
based out of Lancashire would benefit significantly due better access improving East 
West Connectivity.  The new Frontier Park development in Hyndburn would have a 
multiplier effect with better connectivity of the M65. 

 
4. Unlock potential and regenerate some of the most deprived areas in the United Kingdom.  

On the current M65 sit some of the most deprived communities in the UK.  Better 
connectivity from the area of the M65 would attract inward investment into these areas 
thereby creating regeneration within these communities as well as the establishment of 
new industry using the strength and knowledge of the area in the Manufacturing sector. 

 
To summarise, the opportunity for the M65 to link into Yorkshire to improve East West 
Connectivity is a once in a lifetime opportunity and it can act as a driver to transform the 
whole of East Lancashire and positively drive economic development and social mobility. 
 
Proposer: Councillor Noordad Aziz 
Seconder: Councillor Stewart Eaves 
 
Submitted on:3rd June 2019 
 
2. Power Up The North  
 
That this Council recognises the campaign launched in June 2019 by media outlets across 
the North titled Power Up The North.  The north-south divide is not new, but after nearly a 
decade of austerity and many more of London-centric control, it is time to acknowledge the 
disparity between the North and South especially when it comes to infrastructure investment 
as well as the ability and capacity to attract inward investment and the earning capacity. 
 
We therefore resolve to add our support to the campaign as well as writing to the government 
asking for an end to austerity and a commitment to an investment programme in significant 
transport infrastructure, in education and up-skilling, and in renewal and regeneration to drive 
Hyndburn and the North forward 
 
Proposer: Councillor Noordad Aziz  
Seconder: Councillor Kate Walsh 
 
Submitted on 12th June 2019 
 
3. Free TV Licences for the Over 75s 
 

Page 70



 

This Council recognises that social isolation is a distinct possibility for many of those in 
Hyndburn who fall into the category of having their free TV licences removed. 
 
For many Hyndburn Residents television is a means of interaction and contact with the wider 
world.  If this free TV licence is to be removed, this could also have consequences on their 
ability to afford such an extra cost, with the amount the government intend to save with this 
endeavour being small, but the impact potentially being significant.  
 
This Council proposes to write to the BBC and the Minister for Culture Media and Sports, 
calling for the Free TV licence for over 75s to remain.  
 
Proposer: Cllr Glen Harrison 
Seconder: Cllr Stewart Eaves 
 
Submitted 12th June 2019  
 
4. Integrated Home Service Improvement Contracts 
 
This Council notes with great concern that Lancashire County Council have agreed to end the 
integrated home service improvement contracts in 2020. 
 
We believe ending these will have a huge impact on Hyndburn residents who rely heavily on 
this service to live with independence, dignity and respect. We are also concerned that the 
majority of these users are in a financially weak position and this will only make this situation 
worse.  Also the impact to the health service will far out way any short term saving cuts that 
are being made.  
 
We resolve to write to both the leader of Lancashire County Council, Cllr Jeff Driver and the 
Rt Hon Matt Hancock, Secretary of State for Health and Social Care, and ask that both these 
Conservative administrations review these decisions and their impending effects on both the 
Health Service and Hyndburn residents.  
 
Proposer: Councillor Paul Cox 
Seconder: Councillor Stewart Eaves 
 
Submitted on 13th June 2019 
 
5. Stanhill Road Motorway Bridge 
 
This Council recognises that the state of mental health provision nationally is vastly 
underfunded which impacts on residents in Hyndburn. 
 
The motorway bridge on Stanhill Rd over the M65 motorway had two suicide attempts in four 
days.  A multitude of incidents have occurred at that location since the bridge was first 
constructed including youths throwing stones at oncoming traffic.  Shockingly Highways 
England believe that the railings at this bridge meet the required safety standards. 
 
This Council resolves to write to Highways England, recommending that works take place to 
raise the railings around this bridge which is yards from a children’s play area. 

Page 71



 

 
 
Proposer: Councillor Glen Harrison 
Seconder: Councillor Chris Knight 
 
Submitted on 17th June 2019 
 
 
6. Use of Herbicides and Pesticides 
 
That the Council review their use of herbicides and pesticides now, including and in Particular 
the use of Glyphosate, and speak with other local Councils about how they have been able to 
stop using such chemicals around their Boroughs and also, continue to follow in the footsteps 
of other boroughs in becoming a pesticide free town. 
 
Proposer: Councillor Sara Britcliffe 
Seconder: Councillor Josh Allen 
 
Submitted on 25th June 2019 
 

Page 72


	Agenda
	4. Confirmation of Minutes
	Minutes
	Minutes Public Pack, 25/05/2019 Council
	Minutes


	5. Question Time
	6. Changes of Appointments to Committees
	7. APPG Definition on Islamophobia
	8. Minutes of Cabinet
	Minutes
	$$MDocPackPublic.version0003
	Minutes


	9. Minutes of Committees
	Minutes
	Resources OSC - 14 March 2019
	Minutes

	Judicial PH and HC - 20 March 2019
	C&WB OSC - 21 March 2019
	Planning (Trees) - 4 April 2019
	Minutes

	Management Review - 24 April 2019
	Minutes

	Planning - 24 April 2019
	Minutes


	10. Motion(s) submitted on Notice

